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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Pickrr Technologies Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Pickrr Technologies Private Limited (“the
Company™), which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31, 2023. the Statement of Profit and Loss,
including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement
of Changes in Equity for the year then ended. and notes to the financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act. 2013, as amended
(“the Act™) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023, its
loss including other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended
on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs).
as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements™ section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the “Code of Ethics’ issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to
our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder. and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Annual report but does not include the financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and. in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements, or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If. based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibility of Management for the Financial Statements
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act

with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in
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equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read with
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2021, as amended. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities: selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls. that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements,

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

= Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements. whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error.
as fraud may involve collusion. forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

+  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained. whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.
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Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters. the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings. including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

}J

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order™), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the
“Annexure |7 a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a)

(b)

(d)

(¢)

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

[n our opinion. proper books of accounts as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books except that the backup of the books of
account and other books and papers maintained in electronic mode has not been maintained on
servers physically located in India on daily basis.

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income. the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account:

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act. read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2021, as amended;

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2023
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31,
2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

The observation relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith
are as stated in paragraph (b) above:;

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to these financial
statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure 27 to this report;

The provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act are not applicable to the
Company for the year ended March 31, 2023;

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules. 2014, as amended in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:
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iii.

VI.

FFor S.R. Batliboi &
Chartered Account
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Partner

Membership Number: 400419
UDIN: 23400419BGTGRS7287

jay Bachchani

The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position:

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses:

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

a) The management has represented that. to the best of its knowledge and belief. no funds
have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium
or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or
entity(ies). including foreign entities (“Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee. security or
the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries:

b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
have been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies). including foreign
entities (“Funding Parties™). with the understanding. whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Company shall. whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding
Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee. security or the like on behalf
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries: and

¢) Based on such audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to
believe that the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material
misstatement,

No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Company.

As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable for the

Company only w.e.f. April 1, 2023, reporting under this clause is not applicable.

ociates LLP

Number: 101049W/E300004

Place: Gurugram
Date: September 22, 2023
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Annexure 1 referred to in paragraph 1 of report on other legal and regulatory requirements

Re: Pickrr Technologies Private Limited (‘the Company’)

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the
books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our
knowledge and belief, we state that:

(1)

(ii)

(iii)

(a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars. including
quantitative details and situation of Property. Plant and Equipment.

(a) (B) The Company has not capitalized any intangible assets in the books of the Company
and accordingly. the requirement to report on clause 3(i)(a)(B) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

(b) Property. Plant and Equipment have been physically verified by management during
the year. and no material discrepancies were identified on such verification.

(c) There is no immovable property (other than properties where the Company is the lessee
and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee). held by the Company
and accordingly. the requirement to report on clause 3(i)(c) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

(d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment during the vear ended
March 31. 2023,

(e) According to the information and explanations given by the management. there are no
proceedings initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami property
under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act. 1988 and rules made
thereunder.

(a) The Company’s business does not require maintenance of inventories and, accordingly.
the requirement to report on clause 3(ii)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. five crores
in aggregate from banks or financial institutions during any point of time of the year on the
basis of security of current assets. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(ii)(b)
of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(a) During the year the Company has not provided loans. advances in the nature of loans.
stood guarantee or provided security to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or
any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(a) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

(b) During the year the Company has not made investments, provided guarantees, provided
security and granted loans and advances in the nature of loans to companies, firms. Limited
Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause
3(iii)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(¢) The Company has not granted loans and advances in the nature of loans to companies,
firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly. the requirement to
report on clause 3(iii)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(d) The Company has not granted loans and advances in the nature of loans to companies.
firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly. the requirement to
report on clause 3(iii)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(¢) There were no loans or advance in the nature of loan granted to companies, firms,
Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly. the requirement to report
on clause 3(iii)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(f) The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans. either
repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment to companies,
firms. Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly. the requirement to
report on clause 3(iii)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

There are no loans, investments, guarantees, and security in respect of which provisions of
sections 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are applicable and accordingly. the
requirement to report on clause 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has neither accepted any deposits from the public nor accepted any amounts
which are deemed to be deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Companies
Act and the rules made thereunder, to the extent applicable. Accordingly. the requirement
to report on clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not in the business of sale of any goods or provision of such services as
prescribed. Accordingly. the requirement to report on clause 3(vi) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(a) Undisputed statutory dues including goods and services tax, provident fund, employees®
state insurance, income-tax, and other statutory dues have been generally regularly
deposited with the appropriate authorities and there have been significant delays in few
cases of provident fund. According to the information and explanations given to us and
based on audit procedures performed by us, no undisputed dues in respect of goods and
services tax, provident fund, employees” state insurance, income-tax. and other statutory
dues which were outstanding, at the year end. for a period of more than six months from
the date they became payable.

(b) There are no dues of goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance.
income tax, cess, and other statutory dues which have not been deposited on account of any
dispute.

The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction. previously unrecorded in
the books of account. in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income
during the year. Accordingly. the requirement to report on clause 3(viii) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(a) The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the
payment of interest thereon to any lender.

(b) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution
or government or any government authority.

(¢) The Company did not have any term loans outstanding during the year hence. the
requirement to report on clause (ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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(d) The Company did not raise any funds during the year hence, the requirement to report
on clause (ix)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(e) The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture. Accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3(ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(f) The Company does not have any subsidiary. associate or joint venture. Accordingly. the
requirement to report on clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(x) (a) The Company has not raised any money during the year by way of initial public offer /
further public offer (including debt instruments) hence, the requirement to report on clause
3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares
/fully or partially or optionally convertible debentures during the year under audit and
hence. the requirement to report on clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(xi) (a) No fraud by the Company or no fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported
during the year.

(b) During the year, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act.
2013 has been filed in Form ADT — 4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules. 2014 with the Central Government.

(c) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints
received by the Company during the year.

(xii)  The Company is not a Nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Companies Act. 2013.
Therefore. the requirement to report on clause 3(xii)(a). (b) and (¢) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(xiii)  Transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 188 of Companies Act,
2013 where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements, as required by the applicable accounting standards. The provisions of section 177
are not applicable to the Company and accordingly the requirements to report under clause
3(xiit) of the Order insofar as it relates to section 177 of the Act is not applicable to the
Company.

(xiv)  (a) The Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its
business.

(b) The internal audit reports of the Company issued till the date of the audit report. for the
period under audit have been considered by us.

(xv)  The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons
connected with its directors and hence requirement to report on ¢lause 3(xv) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

(xvi) (a) The provisions of section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934) are
not applicable to the Company. Accordingly. the requirement to report on clause (xvi)(a) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

LR
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(xvil)

(xviii)

(xix)

(xx)

(b) The Company is not engaged in any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance
activities. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause (xvi)(b) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(¢) The Company is not a Core Investment Company as defined in the regulations made by
Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly. the requirement to report on clause 3(xvi) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

(d) There is no Core Investment Company as a part of the Group, hence, the requirement to
report on clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has incurred cash losses in the current year amounting to Rs. 821.57 Mn. In
the immediately preceding financial year, the Company had incurred cash losses amounting
to Rs. 380.54 Mn.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly
requirement to report on Clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

On the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in note 43 to the financial statements, ageing
and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities. other
information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors
loand management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the
assumptions. nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that Company is not capable of meeting
its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period
of one year from the balance sheet date. We. however, state that this is not an assurance as
to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the
facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance
that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get
discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

(a) The provisions of Section 135 to the Companies Act, 2013 in relation to Corporate Social
Responsibility is not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on
clause 3(xx)(a) and (b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

For S.R. Batliboi & Agsociates LLP

Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm gegisyny

riner

Membership Number: 400419
UDIN: 234004 19BGTGRS7287

Place: Gurugram
Date: September 22, 2023
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ANNEXURE 2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF PICKRR TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Pickrr
Technologies Private Limited (“the Company™) as of March 31, 2023 in conjunction with our audit of
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI™).
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business. including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information. as required under the Companies Act. 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference
to these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™)
and the Standards on Auditing, as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. to the extent applicable
to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements
was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to these financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements, assessing the
risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to these financial
statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to these Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes those policies
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and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company: (2) provide reasonable

assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the
company: and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition. use. or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect
on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation
of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to
the risk that the internal financial control with reference to financial statements may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has. in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the internal control over financial
reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAL

For S.R. Batliboi & Agsociates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registrg#On Number: 101049W/E300004

Partner
Membership Number: 400419
UDIN: 234004 19BGTGRS7287

Place: Gurugram
Date: September 22, 2023



Pickrr Technologies Private Limited

CIN: U74140HR2015PTCOS7213

Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023

(All amounts in Rs, Millions, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Notes As at As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 April 01, 2021
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3 11.29 28.04 4.37
Right-of-use assets 4 18.75 3351 20,50
Financial assets
(i) Other financial assets fe 3.29 597 277
Deferred tax assets (net) 5 - - 10.52
Total non-current assets 33.33 67.52 38,16
Current assets
Financial asscts
(1) Investments 6a - 254 41 -
(i) Trade receivables 6h 222.29 295.58 131.72
{i11) Cash and cash equivalents 6 ; 137.89 195,94 308.56
{iv) Other bank balance 6d 2.84 5478 52.83
(v} Other financial assets e 19312 14423 45.10
Current tax assets (net) 7 79.76 28.70 -
Other current assets 8 61.00 79.24 3.92
Total current assets 696,90 1,052.88 542,12
Total assets 730.23 1,120.40 580.28
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Equity Share Capital 9 0,23 0.23 0.18
Other equity 10 (615.63) 389.01 191,33
Total equity (615.40) 389.24 191.51
LIABILITES
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
{i) Lease Liabilities 29 4.95 19.54 13.65
Provisions 11 14.87 8.80 3.99
Tatal non-current liabilities 19.82 28.34 17.64
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(1) Bomrowings 12 486.47 - -
(ii}) Lease Liabilities 0 14.60 13.92 6.24
(1ii) Trade payables 13
a) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises: 56,11 12,32 -
b) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 460,23 357.11 169.39
{iv}) Others Financial Liabilities 14 206.58 243,15 136.44
Other current liabilities 15 8822 70.32 47.27
Provisions 11 13.60 6.00 1.74
Current tax liabilities (net) 16 - - 10.06
Total current liabilities 1,325.81 702.82 371.13
Total liabilities 1,345.63 731.16 388.77
Total equity and liabilities 730.23 1,120.40 580.28

Summary of significant accounting policies

The accompanying notes are integral part of financial statements.

¥

As per our report of even date
For 5, R Batliboi & Associat

pEr Sarjay Bachchani
Partner
Membership No, - 400419

Place : Gurugram
Date ;. September 22,2023

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Pickrr Technologies Private Limited

urav Mangla
Director =
DIN: 07030189

Place : Gurugram
Date : September 22,2023

r Tanmay
Director
DIN: (9631572

Place : Gurugram

ﬁb\\;\ V\,“-Oh\
/Km/

Date : September 22,2023



Pickrr Technologies Private Limited

CIN: U74140HR2015PTC057213

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2023
{All amounts in Rs. Millions, unless otherwise stated)

; Not Year ended Year ended
Fatlinden A March 31,2023 March 31,2022
Income .
Revenue from operations 17 3,061.96 2,042 06
Other income 18 2.55 15.92

Total income (1) 3,064.51 2,057.98
Expenses
Employee benefits expense 19 881.41 476,75
Finance costs 20 2270 243
Depreciation and amortisation expense 21 32.85 23.24
Other expenses 2 3,178.39 2,067.85
Total Expenses (11) 4,115.35 2,570.27_
(Loss)/Profit before tax (II=I+1I) (1,050.84) (512.29)
Tax expense: 3
Current tax = =
Deferred tax - 10.52
Total Tax Expense (IV) i 10.52
(Loss)/Profit for the year (V=ITI-IV) (1,050.84) (522.81)
Other Comprehensive Income/(Loss):

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods:

(1) Re-measurement (loss)/gain on defined benefit plans 24 2.20 0.43
Total Other Comprehensive Income/(Loss) for the year (VI) 2.20 0.43
Total Comprehensive Income/(Loss) for the year (VII=V+VI) (1,048.64) (522.38)
(Loss)/Earnings per equity share: 25
Basic EPS (In INR) (45479.25) (25,035.86)
Diluted EPS (In INR) (45,479.25) (25,035.86)

Summary of significant accounting policies
The accompanying notes are integral part of financial statements,
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Pickrr Technologies Private Limited

CIN: U74140HR2015PTC057213
Statement of cash flow for the year ended March 31, 2023

(All amounts in Rs. Millions, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
A, Cash flow from operating activities
Loss before tax (1,050.84) (512.29)
Adjustment to reconcile (Loss)/Profit before tax to net cash flows
Depreciation and amortization expense 32.85 23.24
Interest Income on bank deposits (0.86) (2.57)
Interest on Security deposits carried at amortised cost {0.42) (0.27)
Interest on lease liabilities 236 126
Loss on disposal of Property, plant and equipment 011 -
Liabilities written back - (1.18)
Profit on sale of current investments {0.86) {4.82)
Mark to Market on currrent Investment - (4.41)
Provision for expected credit loss 159.48 B86.58
Share Based Payment Expense 44,01 43.66
Operating (Loss)/Profit before working capital changes {814.17) (369.80)
Working capital adjustments:
(Decrease) in Other financial assets (46.07) {102,04)
Decrease in Trade Receivables {86.18) (250.44)
Increase / (decrease) in other current and non-current assets 18.24 (75.32)
Increase in Trade Payables 146.91 201.22
Increase in Other current liabilities 17.90 23.05
Increase in Provisions 15.87 9.49
(Decrease)/Increase in other financial liabilties (36.56) 106.71
Cash (used in) from operations (784.08) (457.13)
Direct taxes paid (net of refund) (51.05) (38.77)
Net cash flows (used in) from operating activities (A) (835.12) (495.90)
B. Investing activities
Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of Property, plant and equipment including Capital advances (1.55) {36.74)
Proceeds from sale of Property, plant and equipment 0.10 -
Proceeds from redemption of investments 25527 -
Investiments in mutual funds - (245.18)
Redemption/{Investment) in Bank deposits {net) 51.93 (1.95)
Net cash flows generated/(used in) from investing activities {B) 305.75 (283.87)
C. Financing activities
Cash Flow from financing activities
Proceeds from issue of share capital including share premimum - 676.45
Proceeds from borrowings 486.47 -
Interest Income on bank deposits 113 2.57
Principal and interest payment of lease liability (16.27) (11.87)
Net cash flows generated from financing activities (C) 471.33 667.15
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) {58.04) (112.62)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 195.94 308.56
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of year 137.89 195.94
Components of cash and cash equivalents
Cash in hand 0.00 0.0]
Balances with banks- on current accounts 137.89 195,93
Total cash and cash equivalents (Refer note 6c) 137.89 195.94

Refer Note 6d for Change in liabilities arising from financing activities

The accompanying notes are integral part of financial statements.

As per our report of even date
For 8. R Batliboi & Associat

Membership No. - 400419

Place : Gurugram
Date : September 22,2023

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Pickrr Technologies Private Limited

auray Mangla
Director
DIN: (7030189

Place : Gurugram

Date : September 22,2023

DIN: 09631572

Place : Gurugram
Date : September 22,2023



Pickrr Technologies Private Limited

CIN: UT4140HR2015PTCO57213

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2023
{All amounts in Rs. Millions, unless otherwise stated)

a4, Equity share capital

Particulars

Equity shares of Rs 10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid
As at April 1, 2021

Conversion during the vear

As at March 31, 2022

Issue of share capital

As at March 31, 2023

b. Equity component of convertible preference shares

No. of shares Amount

1 1.666 012

892 0.01
12,558 013
12, 0.13

Particulars M. of shares Amount
0.1% Compulsorily Convertible Preference shares
As at April 1, 2021 6.099 0.06
Issued during the vear 5341 0.05
Conversion during the year -892 -0.01
As at March 31, 2022 10,548 0.10
Issue of share capital - -
As at March 31, 2023 10.548 0.10
€. Other equity
Security Premium Employee stock Retained earning Other Equity contribution Total
options outstanding Comprehensive from helding
Particulars Income company
Balance as at April 1, 2021 153.03 - 38.30 - 191.33
Loss for the vear - - (522.81) - (522.81)
Add: On Issue of shares capital 676.40 - - - 676.40
Add: Share based pavment expense (refer note 37) - 43.66 - - 43.66
Add; Other comprehensive income for the year - - - 043 - 043
Balance as at March 31, 2022 £29.43 43.66 {484.51) 043 - 389.01
Loss for the year = (1,050.84) - (1.050.84)
Less: Share based pavment (Refer note 37) - (43.66) - - (43.66)
Add : Additiona! contribution from Halding eompany (refer note 38) - - - 44.01 44.01
Add; Cancellation of Share based payment - 43 66 - 43.66
Add: Other comprehensive income for the year - . x 230 i 220
Balance as at March 31,2023 829.43 = (1.491.69 2.62 44.01 (6I§ﬁ.‘ii
Summary of significant accounting policies
The accompanying notes are intestral paffof financial statements
As per our repant of even date
For 5. R Batliboi & Associates L. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants Pickrv Technologies Private Limited
ICAI Firm Rewistration WIE300004
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r Director Dirfeior Nk
Membership No. - 400419 DIN: 07030189 DIN: 09631572 h k g 4
b

Place - Gurugram
Date: September 22,2023

Place : Gurugram
Date © Septenber 22,2023
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Pickrr Technologies Private Limited
CIN: UT4140HR2015PTCO57213
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31,2023

{All amounts in Rs. Millions, unless otherwise stated)

2.

Corporate Information

Pickrr Technologies Private Limited (‘the Company’) was established under the provisions of the companies Act, 2013.The Company was regi d under the Regi

No- U74140HR2015PTC057213 dated 9th November, 2015. The Registered office the Company is Third Floor, 448A Enkay Square, Udyog Vihar, Phase-5, Gurgaon
122022, The Company is engaged in the busi of logistics services and other ancillary activities of a similar nawre. The financial statement were approved for issue in
accordance with a resolution of the directors on September 22, 2023.

Basis of Lreparation

These financial have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of Indian Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Companies Act 2013
("the Aet”), read with of the Companies (Indian A ing Standards) Rules, 2021, as amended and presentation requirements of Division 1l of Schedule 11l to the
Companies Act, 2013, (Ind AS compliant Schedule 111), as applicable to the fi ial stat

These fi ial st have been prepared under the historical cost convention on the acerual basis excepl certain financial i which are d at fair values,
wherever applicable, at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies below,
This note provides a list of the significant ac ing policies adopted in the preparation of these fi These policies have been consistently applied to all
the years presented, unless otherwise stated, The fi ial are p d in Indian Rupees and all amounts disclosed in the financial and notes have
been rounded off to the nearest millions (as per the requirement of Schedule 111), unless otherwise stated.

=1

Summary of significant accounting policies

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial in conformity with the principles of Ind AS Juires the to make judg t i and I that effect the
reported of 1 . EXp . assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period. Although these estimates are
based on the management’s best knowledge of current events and actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in the outcomes requiring a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities in future periods,

The esti and underlying ptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

In particular, information about the significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and eritical judg in applying ing policies that have the most significant effect on
the amounts recognised in the standalone fi ial are disclosed in note No, 26,

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment loss, if any. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the
plant and equipment, When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates them separately based on their specific
useful lives. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition
criteria are satisfied. All other repair and mai costs are recognised in profit and loss as incurred,

On wransition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the cartying value of all of its property, plant and equipment recognised as at April 1, 2021 measured as
per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of the property, plant and equipment.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is d gnised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from
its use or disposal, Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset)
is included in the income statement when the asset is derecognised.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment
Depreciation on all property plant and equipment are provided on a written down value based on the estimated useful life of the asset, which is as follows:

Category of asset Useful Lives (Years)
Office Equipment 5 '
Fumiture and Fixtures 10
Computers 1
Plant and Machinery 10

The management has estimated the useful lives and residual values of all property, plant and equipment and adopted useful lives based on management’s technical
assessment of their respective economic useful lives. The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each
financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Depreciation on the assets purchased during the year is provided on pro rata basis from the date of purchase of the assets. Individual assets costing less than Rs. 5,000 are
fully depreciated in the vear of purchase.

Current versus Non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on cument! non-current classification, An asset is treated as current when it is meeting the following
conditions. All other assets are classified as non-current.

1) Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cyele

ii) Held primarily for the purpose of trading

iii} It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

1v) There is no unconditional right to defer the setilement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period,

Deferred tax assets and liabilitics are classified as non-current assets and liabilitics

The operating eycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and eash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months
as its operating cycle.




Pickrr Technologies Private Limited
CIN: UT4140HR2015PTCO57213
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

(All amounts in Rs. Millions, unless otherwise stated)

e

Revenue recognition

The Company's revenue primarily stems from its innovative merchant solutions deeply rooted in cutting-edge technology, These merchant solutions revelve around shipping,
fulfillment and conversion technology, serving as a bridge connecting retailers, carriers, and consumers on both national and international fronts. The Company’s advanced
technology plays a pivotal role in powering shipping and fulfillment for SMEs, D2C retailers, and social commerce sellers, while also offering a comprehensive technology
stack for retailers to seamlessly integrate their shopping websites or their other channels for efficient inventory and order management.

Within the realm of merchant solutions, the Company generates revenue through a range of technology-driven services. This includes subscription charges, platform fees and
value-added services, as well as revenue derived from shipping and logistics solutions, payment management, and state-of-the-art fulfillment solutions. The company's

principal methed of charging its is on a pay-for-use model i.c. the company monetises its products or services on a per-transaction basis. These technology-driven
services are strategically designed to emp and optimi hants” use of the tech-based platform, ultimately constituting a significant portion of the Company’s overall
revenue.

A with I do not provide the merchants with the right to take possession of the software supporting the Company s hosting platform at any time and are

therefore accounted for as service contracts. The Company recognizes revenue to depict the transfer of promised services to its customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those services by applying the following steps:

*Identify the contract with a customer

+Identify the performance obligations in the contract
*Determine the transaction price.

*Allocate the transaction price and

*Recognize revenue when, or as, the Company satisfies a perfi 2
The Company follows the guidance provided in IND AS 115 Revenue from Contracts with Customers, for determining whether the Company is the principal or an agent in
arrangements with customers that involve another party that contributes to providing a specified service to a customer. In these instances, the Company determines whether it
has promised to provide the specified service itself (as principal) or to arrange for the specified service to be provided by another party (as an agent), This determination
depends on the facts and circumstances of each arrangement.

bligation.

GST collected from h and remitted to government authorities are excluded from revenue,

The Company determines the price for each performance obligation based on observable standalone selling prices. Standalone selling prices are determined considering
pricing objectives, market conditions, discounting practices, tr ion size, di raphics, geopraphy, price lists, and go-to-market strategy. This determination
involves ltation and approval. Changes in go-to-market strategi may lead to adj in standalone selling prices. Payment is generally received upon
invoicing, with payment terms varying by contract type but usually requiring payment within 30 days of the invoice date, The company also allows its merchants to maintain
advances. The contracts do not involve significant financing components when there are timing differences between revenue recognition, invoicing, and payment,

Retirement and other emplovee benefits

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund and national pensi I (NPS} is a defined contribution scheme, The Company has no obligation, other than the
contribution payable to the provident fund/NPS. The Company recognizes contribution payable to the provident fund scheme/NPS scheme as an expense, when an employee
renders the related service. If the contribution payable to the scheme for service received before the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit
payable to the scheme is recognized as a liability after deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for services
received before the balance sheet date, then excess is recognized as an asset to the extent that the prepayment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payment or a
cash refund.

Gratuity

Gratuity liability is a defined benefit obligation and is provided for on the basis of an actuarial valuation on prajected unit credit method made at the end of each financial
year. Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability are recognised immediately in
the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI in the year in which they oceur, R ments are not reclassified to profit or loss
in subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognised in profit and loss on the earlier of:
i) The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and
ii) The date that the Company recognises related restr ing costs

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined bencfit liability. The Company recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit
blig as an exp in the of profit and loss:

i) Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and non-routine settlements; and
ii) Net interest expense

Leave encashment

Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next 12 months, is treated as short-term employee benefit, The Company measures the expected cost of such
absences as the additional amount that it expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date. The Company recognizes expected
cost of short-term employee benefit as an expense, when an employee renders the related service.

i

The Company also op a leave plan. The Company treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as long-term employee
benefit for measurement purposes. Such long-term compensated absences are provided for based on the actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method at the
reporting date. Actuarial gains/losses are immediately taken to the statement of profit and loss and are not deferred, The obligations are presented as current liabilities in the
balance sheet if the entity does not have an unconditional right to defer the sertlement for at least twelve months after the reporting date.

Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees
render the related service are recognized in respect of employee service upto the end of the reporting period and are measured at the amount expected to be paid when the
liabilities are settled. The liabilitics are presented as current employee benefit obligations in the balance sheet,




Pickrr Technologies Private Limited
CIN: UT4140HR2015PTCO057213
Notes to financial statements for the yvear ended March 31, 2023

(Al amounts in Rs. Millions, unless otherwise stated)

P

Leases
On initial application of Ind AS 116, the Company has adopted medificd retrospective approach and has recognised Right of use asset and lease liahility on nitial
application at the present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted using the Company s incremental borrowing rate.

On initial application of Ind AS 116, the Company has adopted modified retrospective approach and has recognised Right of use asset and lease lability on initial
application at the present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted using the C ompany s incremental borrowing rate.

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration.

Company as a lessee
The company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets, The Company recognises
lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

1) Right of use assets

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.c., the date the underlying asset is available for use), Right-of-use assets are measured
at cost, less any lated depreciation and lated impairment losses, and adjusted for any ement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets
includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives
received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets.

“If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is caleulated using
the estimated useful life of the asset .

i) Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease payments to be made over the fease term. The lease
payments include fixed payments (including in sut fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and
amounts expected to be paid under residual value guaranices, The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain (o be exercised by
the Company and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Company exercising the option to terminate. Variable lease payments that do
not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expenses (unless they are incurred to produce inventories) in the period in which the event or condition that triggers the

payment occurs.

In caleulating the present value of lease payments, the Comy uses its ing | borrowing rale at the lease date 1 the interest rate implicit in the
lease is not readily determinable, After the ¢ nt date, the of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the aceretion of interest and reduced for the lease
payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilitics 15 remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments (e.g.,
changes to future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine such lease payments ) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the
underlying asset.

i1) Short-term leases
The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its properties (i.c., those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date
and do not contain a purchase option). Lease payments on short-term leases are recognised as expense on a straight-ling basis over the lease term

Earnings per share

Basic eamings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit and loss for the period attributable to equity sharcholders (afier deducting preference dividends and
attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity and compulsorily converiible preference shares outstanding during the period. For the purpose of calculating
diluted eamnings per share, the net profit and loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period
are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Income taxes

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities in accordance with the Income Tax Act,
1961 and the Income Computation and Disclosure Standards ("ICDS") enacted in India by using tax rates and tax laws that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the
reporting date. Current 1 tax relating to items recognised outside profit and loss is recognised outside profit and loss (either in other comprehensive income or in
equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction cither in OCI or directly in equity. Management considers whether it is probable that a
taxation authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment. The Company shall reflect the effect of uncertainty for each uncertain tax treatment by using either most likely
method or expected value method, depending on which method predicts better resolution of the treatment. Advance taxes and provisions for current income taxes are
presented in the balance sheet after off-setting advance tax paid and income tax provision arising in the same tax jurisdiction and where the relevant tax paying units intends
to settle the asset and liability on a net basis,

Deferred taxes

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes at the reporting date. Deferred tax abilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

1} When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not 4 business combination and, at the time of
the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit and loss,




Pickrr Technologies Private Limited
CIN: UT4140HR2015PTC057213
Notes to financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2023

(All amounts in Rs. Millions, unless otherwise stated)

i) In respeet of taxable temporary differences assaciated with investments in subsidiaries and associates, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foresecable future.

Deferred tax assets are gnised for all deductible temporary differences, the cany forward of unused tax crediis and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

1) When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit and loss

1) In respect of deductible temporary differences iated with investments in subsidiaries and associates, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is
probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foresceable future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred lax assets are re-assessed at cach reporting date and are recognised to the extent
that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilitics are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates
1 b ively d at the reporting date.

(and tax laws) that have been or

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit and loss is recognised outside profit and loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items
are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in cquity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes

relate to the same taxable entitv and the same taxation authority

| Foreign currency transactions
Items included in the Financial Statements are measured using the currency of the primary ¢conomic environment in which the entity operates (*the functional currency).
The Company’s Fi ial § are presented in Indian Rupee (“the functional currency”) which is also the Company’s functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded in the functional currency spot rates at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition. However. for practical
reasons, the company uses an average rate if the average approximates the exchange rates at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date,

Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recogmised in profit and loss with the exception of the following:

i) In the fi ial stat ts that include the foreign operation and the reporting entity (e.g., financial statements when the foreign operation is a branch), such exchange
differences are recognised initially in OCI. These exchange differences are reclassificd from equity to profit and loss on disposal of the net investment.

1i) Tax charges and credits attributable to exchange differences on those monetary items are also recorded in OCL

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are lated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-
monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising on
translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (1.c.. translation
differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in OC1 or profit or loss are also recognised in OCT or profit or loss, respectively),

k  Share based payments
Employecs (including senior executives) of the Company receive remuneration in the form of share-based payments, whereby employees render services as consideration for
equity instruments (equity-seltled transactions). The cost of equity-settled transactions is determined by the fair value at the date when the grant is made using an appropriate
valuation model,

That cost 1s recognised, together with a corresponding increase in share-based payment (SBP) reserves in equity, over the year in which the performance and/or service
conditions are fulfilled in employee benefits expense. The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at cach reporting date until the vesting date reflects
the extent to which the vesting year has expired and the Company’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The statement of profit and
loss expense or credit for a year represents the movement in cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that year and is recopnised in employee benefits
expense,

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken into account when determining the grant date fair value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being
met is assessed as part of the Company's best estimate of the number of equity mstruments that will ultimately vest. Market performance conditions are reflected within the
grant date fair value, Any other conditions attached to an award, but without an associated service requirement, are considered to be non-vesting conditions. Nonvesting
conditions are reflected in the fair value of an award and lead to an immediate expensing of an award unless there are also service and/or performance conditions.

No expense 1s recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest b non-market perfy e and/or service conditions have not been met. Where awards include a
market or non-vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vested iespective of whether the market or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided that all other
performance and/or service conditions are satisfied,

When the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, the minimum I recognised 15 the exy had the terms had not been modified, if the original terms of the
award are met. An additional expense is recognised for any modification that increases the total fair value of the share-based payment (ransaction, or is otherwise beneficial
to the employee as measured at the date of modification.

For cancelled options, the payment made to the employee shall be accounted for as a deduction from equity, except to the extent that the payment exceeds the fair value of
the equity instruments of the Company, 1 at the ¢ llation date. Any such excess from the fair value of equity instrument shall be recognised as an expense.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the computation of diluted earnings per share.
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Sepment Reporting

In accordance with Ind AS 108, Segment Reporting, Segments are identified based on the manner in which the Chief Operating Decision Maker (*CODM’) decides about
resource allocation and reviews performance. Segment results that are reported to the CODM include items directly attributable to a segment as well as those that can be
allocated on a reasonable basis,

Fair value measurement

The Company measures financial instruments (recorded at fair value through P&L or OCT) at fair value at each balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The
fair value measurement is based on the p ption that the tra 1on to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

1) In the principal market for the asset or lability, or

ii} In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the
Company. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that
market participants act in their economic best interest,

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use
or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate m the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of
relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs,

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based
on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

1) Level | — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

11) Level 2 — Valuation techmiques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable

1ii) Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level nput that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable,

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers have oceurred between levels in the
hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets and liabilities. Involvement of external valuers is decided on the basis of nature of transaction and complexity
mvolved, Sclection criteria include market knowledge, r ion, independ and whether professional standards are maimtained,

At each reporting date, the finance team analyses the movements in the values of assets and liahilities which are required to be remeasured or re-assessed as per the
Company’s ing policies. For this analysis, the team verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the information in the valuation computation
to contracts and other relevant documents. A change in fair value of assets and liabilities is also compared with relevant external sources to determine whether the change is
reasonable.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and Habilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or
liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above,

This note summarises accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are given in the relevant notes.

Financial Instruments

A financial instrument 15 any contract thal gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.
i) Financial assets

The Company classified its financial assets in the following measurement categonies ;-

* Those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income or through profit & loss)

* Those measured at amortized cost

Initial recognition and measurement :

Financial assets are initially measured at fair value except for Trade receivables which are initially measured at transaction price. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets (other than financial assets at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Subsequent measurement ;

For purposes of subseq ] ial assets are classified in three categories:
(i) At amortized cost

(1) At fair value through profit or loss ("FVTPL")

(it} At fair value through other comprehensive income {("FVTOCT")- Equity Instruments

At amortized cost

A'debt instrument’ is measured at the amortized cost if the asset is held within a business model whase objective is 1o hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows and
the asset's contractual cash flows represent Sole Payment of Principal and Interest ("SPPI") This category is the most relevant to the Company. After initial measurement,
such fi ial assets are sub ly measured at amortized cost using the e ective interest rate ("EIR") method.
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Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an ntegral part of the EIR. EIR is the rate that exactly
discount the estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial instrament or a shorter period, where appropriate to the gross carrying amount of financial
assets. When calculating the EIR the Company estimate the expected cash flow by considering all contractual terms of the financial instruments, The EIR amartization is
included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognized in the profit or loss, This category generally applies to trade and other
receivables.
At FYTOCI
A financial assets is subsequently measured at FVTOCT if it is held within a business modal whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and
selling financial assets and contractual terms of the financial assels give rise on specified date to cash flows that are SPPI on the principal amount outstanding. All equity
investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. The Company has made an irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive income all subsequent
changes in the fair value. The Company makes such election on an inst -by-mnstrument basis, The classification is made on initial recognition and is irevocable, If the
Company decides o elassify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the mstrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCL There is no
recycling of the amounts from OCI to profit and loss, even on sale of investment, However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. Equity
instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized m the Profit and loss,

At FYTPL
Any financial asset which does not meet the criteria for amortized cost or FVTOCL, is classified as at FVTPL. Equity mstruments which are held for trading and contingent
consideration recognized by an acquirer in a business combination to which Ind AS . applies are classified as FVTPL

Derecognition
The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expare or it transfers the financial asset and the transfer
qualifies for derecognition under Ind AS 109

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit losses ("ECL") model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial
asset and credit risk exposure

* Financial assets measured at amortized cost;

* Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI);

The Company follows “simplified approach” for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivables. Under

the simplified approach, the Company does not track changes in credi risk. Rather, it recognizes impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at the time of initial
revenue recognition. The Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on the portfolio of rade receivables. The provision matrix is based on
the historically observed default rates over the expected life of various categories of trade receivables and these are updated and changed based on forward looking estimates
at every reporting date. For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines whether there has been a significant increase
in the credit risk since initial recognition, If credit risk has not increased significantly, |2-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if eredit risk has
increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If; in subsequent period. credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition, then the Company reverts to recognizing impairment loss allowance based on 12 months ECL.

(it) Financial liabilities

Inmitial recognition and

Financial liabilitics are classified at initial recognition as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings. and payables, net of directly
attributable transaction costs. The Company's financial liabilities include loans and borrowings including bank overdraft, rade payable, trade deposits. retention money and
other payables. The measurement of financial liabilities d ds on thewr classification, as described below:

Trade Payables
These i liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end of financial year which are unpaid, The amounts are unsecured. Trade
and other payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months after the reporting period,

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and fi ial Liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value
through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. Gains or losses on liabilitics
held for trading are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Fi ial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as
such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied,

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate ("EIR") method. Gains and
losses are recogmised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derccognised as well as through the EIR amontization process. Amortised cost is caleulated by taking into
account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included as finance costs in the statement of
profit and loss.

Derecognition
A financial liability (or a part of a financial liability) is derecognized from the Company's Balance Sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged or
cancelled or expires.

Offsetting of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is teported in the statement of assets and labilities if there is a currently enforceable legal right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultancously,

o Impairment of non-financial assets
The company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. [fany indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an
assel is required, the company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair value
less costs of disposal and its value in use, Recoverable amount is determned for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or group of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired
and 1§ written down to its recoverable amount,

In assessmg value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account If no such
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transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded
companies or other available fair value indicators

The company bases its impai lculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which are prepared separately for each of the company’s CGUs to which the
individual assets are allocated. These budgets and forecast calculations generally cover a period of ten years. For langer periods, a long-term growth rate is caleulated and
applied to project future cash flows after the tenth year. To estimate cash flow projections beyond periods covered by the most recent budgets/fi , the pany
extrapolates cash flow projections in the budget using a steady or declining growth rate for subsequent years, unless an increasing rate can be justified. In any case, this
growth rate does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the products, industries, or country or countries in which the entity operates, or for the market in which

the asset is used.

Impairment losses are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an indication that previously recognised impairment losses no
longer ex’st or have decreased. If such indication exists, the company estimates the asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amount.

A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset's recoverable amount since the last
impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the cartying amount of the assct does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the statement of profit
and loss unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case, the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attrib to the acquisiti tion or production of an asset that ily takes a sul ial year of time to get ready for its intended use
or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the year in which they eceur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other
costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds and charged to statement of profit and loss on the basis of effective interest rate (EIR) method.
Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs

Cash and cash equivalents and other bank balance

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as
defined above

Events occurring after the balance sheet date

Based on the nature of the event, the company identifies the events occurring between the balance sheet date and the date on which the falone financial are
approved as *Adjusting Event’ and ‘Non-adjusting event'. Adj to assets and labilities are made for events occurring after the balance sheet date that provide
additional information materially affecting the determination of the lating to conditions existing at the balance sheet date or because of statutory requirements or
because of their special nature. For non-adjusting events, the company may provide a disclosure in the standalone financial statements considering the nature of the
transaction.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

i) Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the abligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation, The expense relating to a
provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is ial, pro ared d using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability.
When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the | of time is recognised as a finance cost.

ii) Contingent liabilities
Contingent liability is a possibl zation that arises from past events and the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one are
more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the company, or is a present obligation that arises from past event but is not recognised because either it is not

Wi

probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, or a reliable esti of the of the obligation cannot be
made. Cc liabilities are disclosed and not re d

Recent accounting proncuncements, to the extent licable to the C ¥

Recent ing pronounc s, to the extent applicable to the Company. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) notifies new standards or amendments to the
existing standards under Companies (Indian A g Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. On March 31, 2023, MCA amended the Companies (Indian

A ing Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023, as below:

Ind AS 1 - Pr ion of Fi ial Stat

This amendment requires the entities to disclose their material accounting policies rather than their significant accounting policies. The effective date for adoption of this
amendment is annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2023. The Company has evaluated the amendment and the impact of the amendment is insigmificant i the

o dal I fal wrat

Ind AS 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors

This amendment has introduced a definition of ‘accounting estimates’ and included amendments to Ind AS 8 to help entities distinguish changes in accounting policies from
changes in accounting estimates. The effective date for adoption of this amendment is annuzl periods beginning on or after April 1, 2023. The Company has evaluated the
amendment and there is no impact on its standalone fi ial

Ind AS 12 - Income Taxes

This amendment has narrowed the scope of the initial recognition exemption so that it does not apply to transactions that give rise to equal and offsetting temporary
differences. The effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2023, The Company has evaluated the d and there is
no impact on its standalone financial stat
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Right-of-use assets

Gross Block

Balance as at April 01, 2021
Additions

Balance as at March 31, 2022
Additions

Balance as at March 31, 2023

Accumulated amortisation
Balance as at April 01, 2021
Depreciation expense

Balance as at March 31, 2022
Depreciation expense

Balance as at March 31, 2023

Carrying amount

Balance as at April 01, 2021
Balance as at March 31, 2022
Balance as at March 31, 2023

Total

20.50
23.19

43.69

43.69

10.17

10.17
14.76

24.93

20.50

33.51

18.75
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As at Asat Asat
5 Deferred tax assets (net) March 31,2023 March 31,2022 April 01, 2021
Depreciation and amortisation for tax purposes . 4 0.07
Disallowance under section 40 (a) (i) = - 0.04
Provision for Doubtful Debts and advances - - B.74
Others - - 1.67
Total - - [0.§2=
Reconciliation of deferred tax asset (net);
Opening balance of deferred tax asset (net} - 1052 10,52
Tax income/{expense) during the year recognised in profit or loss - (10:52) -
Tax income/{expense) during the year recognised in OCI = B
Closing balance of deferred tax asset {net) - - 10,52
Notes:
I The Company has carried forward losses as per Income Tax Act 1961 For the purpose of deferred tax asset gnition purg since, 1t is not probable that the Company will generate future taxable profits, no

deferred tax assets has been recognised
2 The Company offsets tax assets and liabilitics if and only if it has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assels and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income

taxes levied by the same tax auth In addi the Company has an i 10n to settle on a net basis, 1o realise the deferred tax assets and settle the deferred tax liabilities simultaneously.
6 Financial assets
6a  Current investments
As at As at Asat

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 April 01, 2021

Investments at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)

Quoted Liguid Mutual Fond Units

Aditya Birla Sun Life Low Duration Fund (March 31, 2023 Nil, March 31, 2022: 0,28 million, April 01, 2021: Nil) - 15297 -
Hdfe Low Duration Fund (March 31, 2023: Nil, March 31, 2022 2.17 million, April 01, 2021- Nil) - 101.64 -
- 25441 -
Total FVTPL investments
Curremt - 254.41 x
MNon-current i L =
- 25441 -
Aggregate book value of quoted investments { March 31, 2022 INR 250.0 million, April 01, 2021 Nil) - 250,00 -
Aggregate market value of quoted investments { March 31, 2022 INR 254.41 million, April 01, 2021 MNil) - 254.41 -

6b  Trade receivables

Asat Asat As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 April 01, 2021
Trade receivables 22229 295 58 131,72
22229 195.58 13172
Break-up of Trade Receivables:
As at As at As at
darch 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 April 01,2021
Trade receivables
Unsecured, considered pood 22229 29558 131.72
Trade receivables which have significant increase in credit risk 25021 97 56 26.34
47250 39314 158.06
Impairment all 1l for bad and doubiful dehts)
Unsecured, considered nood B
Trade receivables which have significant increase in credit risk - - -
Trade receivables - credit impaired {250.21) 197.56} (26.34)
Total Trade Receivables 222.29 295.58 131.72
Trade Receivables ageing schedule:
As at March 31, 2023 Qutstanding for following periods from ion date
Particulars
n ths -
Less than Six months & m::a: ! -2 years 2-3 years Mare than 3 years Total
(1) Undisputed Trade ivables — dered good 22229 - - - - 222.29
(i1} Undisputed Trade Receivables — which have
significant increase in credit risk 60.97 189.24 - - - 25021
Total 28326 189.24 - - - 472,50
==
|
/
7t /;
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As at March 31, 2022

Outstanding for following periods from transaction date

Particulars

Less than Six months 6 m::::f = 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
(1) Undisputed Trade receivables — considered good 20558 = - - 29558
(1i) Undisputed Trade Receivables - which have
significant increase in credit risk 3989 5767 - - 97.56
Total 33547 57.67 - . - 393,14
As at April 01, 2021 Outstanding for following periods from transaction date
Particulars

: 6 months - 1

Less than Six months - I-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
(i) Undi d Trade receivables ~ idered good 131.72 - - - 131,72
(it) Undisputed Trade Receivables — which have
significant inercase in credit nisk 2431 203 - - 26.34
Total 156.03 .03 - - - 158.06
Set out below is the tin the all for | credit losses of trade receivables:

Asat As at As at
March 31. 2023 March 31,2022 April 01, 2021

Balances at the beginning of the year 97.56 26,34 -
Additions during the year 15265 71.22 26.34
Balances at the end of the year 250.21 97.56 26.34

MNotes:

No trade or other receivable are due from directors or other officers of the company either severally or jomntly with any other person. Nor any

in which any director is a partner, a director or 4 member,
For terms and conditions relating to related party receivables, refer Note 32

1. Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 30 10 90 days.

2 Refer Note e for unbilled receivables

Cash and cash eguivalents

Details of cash and cash equivalents are as follows:

trade or other receivable are due from firms or private companies respectively

Asat As at As at
March 31,2023 March 31, 2022 April 01, 2021
Balances with banks
- On current accounts 137.89 195.93 30754
Cash in hand* .00 0.01 1.02
Total 137.89 195.94 _308.56_
For the purpose of the statement of cash flow, cash and cash equivalents comprise the following
As at As at As at
March 31,2023 March 31,2022 April 01, 2021
Balances with banks;
= On current accounts 137.89 19593 30754
Cash in hand* 000 0.0l 1.02
Total 137.89 195.94 308.56
2 —_—
* 0 represents amount below ling off norms adopted by the C
Other bank balance As i Asat As at
March 31, 2023 March 31,2022 April 01, 2021
- Deposits with orignal maturity for more than 3 months but less than 12 months 2.84 54.78 52.83
2.84 54.78 52.83
=0-L
Changes in liabilities arising from fnancing activities:
| Particulars April 1,2022 Cash flows c"“'\'ﬁ;’: iy New leases Other March 31,2023
Current borrowings B 48647 . i N 486,47
Current lease liabilities (note 29) 13.92 - - 0.68 14.60
Non- current borrowinps E . i e
Non-current lease liabilities {note 29) 19.54 {1627} 1.69 495
| liabilitie: financing activities J3.46 470.19 -] 2,37 506.02
Particula Changes in fair
‘articulars April I, 2021 Cash flows viliids New leases Other March 31,2022
Current lease liabilities (note 29) 6.24 = - 768 13.92
Non- current borrowings - 5 . 5 §
Non-current lease liabilities (note 29) 13.65 -11 87 23.19] =543 19.54
Taotal liabilities from fi ing actiyiti 19.89 -11.87 23.19 2.26

The "Other"colurnn includes the effect of reclassification of non-current portion of borrowings, including

borrowings, including lease liabilities

lease liabilities to current due to the passage of time, and the effect of accrued but not vet paid inlerest on
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Other financial assets

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

Non Current

Security deposits

Unsecured, considered pood

Total Other Non-current financial assets

Current

(a) Secunity deposits
Unsecured, considered zood

(b} Interest Receivable
Interest acerued on deposits with banks

¢} Contract Assets - Unbilled Revenue
Unsecured, considered good

Current tax assets (net)

Advance Income Tax including TDS (net of p
Total Current Tax Assets

Total current
Total non- current

Other current assets
Current
Prepaid Expenses

- Unsecured, considere { good

Advance to Suppliers
~Unsecured, considered good

Advance to Employee
-Unsecured, considered pood

Balances with statutory / government anthorities:
~Unsceured, considercd good

~Unsceurcd, considered doubtful

Less: Pravision for doubiful receivables

Total

Non Current
Current

Asat

Asat

Asai

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 April 01, 2021

329

597

217

3.29

5.97

2.77

As at

As at

As at

March 31,2023 March 31, 2022 April 01, 2021

5.20 236 5
520 2.36 -
027 026
- 0.27 0.26
187,92 141 59 44 84
187.92 141.59 44.84
193.12 144,23 45.10
Asat As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 April 01, 2021
for tax of Rs Nil (March 31, 2022: Nil) (Apnl 01, 2021 Nil) 79.76 28.70 -
79.76 28,70 -
79.76 28.70 -
Asat As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 April 01, 2021
723 13.22 236
723 1322 2.26
14.47 15.71 1.54
1447 1571 154
t 0.07 2.82 -
107 242 -
39.24 47.50 0.14
= = 364
3924 47.50 376
= k) (3.64)
30 47.50 013
61.00 79.24 3.92
61,00 79.24 392
6L 79.24 392
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Equity share capital

Details of share cupital is as follows:

Asat Asat As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 April 01, 2021
Authorised shares
Eaquity Shares
J0,000 (March 31, 2022: 30,000, Apnil 01, 2021: 30,400} Equity Shares of INR 10 cach 30 030 .30
Instruments Entirely Equity in Nature
SO0 (Mareh 31, 2022; 90,000, April (1, 2021: 90,010} of C ily convertible p shares (CCPS) of INR 10 cach 099 han fLen
1.20 L2n 1.20
Eaquity Shares
Issued. subseribed and fully paid un
12.55% (March 31, 2022: 12,558, April 01, 2021; 11 666) Equity Sharcs of INR 10 gach 13 013 iz
(A) 0.13 .13 .12
Instruments Entircly Equity in Nature
Issued. subscribed and fally paid up
1% ¢ Jsorily C ibla Py shares
10,548 (March 31, 2002: 10,548 April 01 2021; 6.099) C ksorily C ibl Sharc of INR 10 cach [N 0.1u 1.6
[13] (811} 010 (X1
Tatal {A+B) .23 iﬁi .18
Reconciliation of authorised, issucd and subscribed share capital:
Recancilintion of Issued, subseribed and fully paid up as at year end ;
Number Amount
Ordinary Equity shares
As at April 01, 2021 (Equity shares of INR 10 cuch) 11,666 0z
Conversion during the vear® #93 LA
As at March 31, 2022 (Equity shares of INR 10 each) 12,558 013
Increase during the year 2 x
Ax at March 31, 2023 (Equity shares of INR 10 cach) 12,558 013
CCPS
Number Amount
0.1% Compulsorily eonvertible preference shures
As at April 01, 2021 (CCPS of INR 10 cuch) G Af9 1.1
Issued during the year 5341 008
Conversion during the year® (892 0.0
As at March 31, 2022 (CCPS of INR 10 cach) 111,548 (A1
Issued during the year - .
As at March 31, 2023 (CCPS of INR 10 each) 10,548 .10
* During the Financial year 21-22, 892 compulsorily ible p share has been converted in equity share
Detuils of sharcholders holding more than 5% shares in the Compuny
As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31,2022 As ut April 01, 2621
N
T S NEE TSI Number s of holding Mumber %o of holding Number e of holding
Equity shares
Mr. Gaurav Mangla 758 fi. 0% 3,133 24, 15% 3,03 20.00%
Mr, Ankit Kaoshik 758 G0 333 24.015% 033 260085
Mr. Rhitiman Majumder 754 G.0H% 3034 4 1a% 034 26,01%
s Swasiika Company Limited - D00 153 203 1271 10.89%
Bigfoot Retail Solution Private Limitcd 10,284 B R9% - - -
12558 LAWY 9,355 T4.49% 14,371 B8.90%
Compalsorily Convertible Preference Shares
As ut March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022 As at April 01, 2021
Number W of holding Number % of holding Number e of holding
Sanjiv Gupta - A0 0 218% Ay f.40%
Palnash Ventures Pyt Lid - (R 355 13 FiR2 8.23%
Pickrr Holding LLC - (AN 1645 15,608 L5 26.97%
ON Mauritius - Lh RIS 1450 2331% 1,645 26.97%
Jyotiprasad Taparin = 0.00% Li27 10.68% - .
IIFL Seed Ventures Fund-Series 2 - s 1502 14.24% - -
Amicus Capital Private Equity | LLP - T 1370 12.99% -
Bigfoot Retail Solution Private Limited 10545 UMD 08 - - - -
10,548 TIHLINI % B85 $237% 4186 HH.63%
Shares held by Holding Company
As ut March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022 As at April 11, 2021
Number % of holding MNumber % of holding Number o of holding
Bigfoot Retail Selutions Private Limited
10,284 (March 31, 2022: Nil, April 00, 2021; Nil) Equity Shares of INR. 10 cach 10284 KRG -
10,548 (March 31, 2022: Nil, April 01 2021 Nil) C pulsonly Co ible Prefe Share of INR 54K T s - E
11y cach




Pickrr Technologies Private Limited

CIN: UT4140HR2M SPTCO57213

Notes to financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts in Rs. Millions, unless otherwise stated)

e, Details of shares held by promoters
As at March 31, 2023

Ne. of shares at the  Change during the  No. of shares at the %o chunge during
g 3 T Total
FromegeNane beginning of the year year end of the year ot Lotat Sharey the year
Bigfoot Retail Solutions Private Linuted { Equity share of INR 10 cach) - FiL 284 10,284 K1.80%
Gauray Mangla (Equity share of INR 10 cach) 3033 (2275) 758 G0.04% STR 0%
Ankit Kaushik (Equity share of INR. 10 cach) 3,033 {2.275) T5H RIEEY -T5.01%
Rhitiman Majumder (Equity share of INR 10 cach) ) 3034 {2.276) 754 6,04% ~75.02%
Total 9,1 3458 12,554 THLON %
No.of shures at the  Change during the  No. of sharcs at the r % change during
Protugser Nishe beginning of the year year end of the year A HTT ol SinEne the yenr
Bigfoot Retail Solutions Private Limited (CCPS of INR 10 cach) = 10,548 10,548 ORI,
Total - 10,548 1548 TS -
As at March 31, 2022
No. of shares at the  Change during the  No, of shores at the % change during
15h
Frantier Nt beginning of the year yeur end of the year Rt Tao Shaey the yenr
Gauray Mangla (Equity sharc of INR 10 cach) 3033 - 3403 24.15% 10.001%,
Ankit Kaushik (Equity share of INR 10 cach) 3033 - 3z 24.15% 00,
Rhitman Majumder { Equity sharc of INR 10 cach) 3.034 . 3034 2 16% 00
Taotal 9,100 - 9,104 TA6%
As at April 11,2021
No.of shures 3t the  Change during the  No. of sharcs at the i 7 % change during
d [ Total
Beanigicr Name heginning of the year year enil of the year % L Toeal Sharcs the year
Gauray Mangla (Equity sharc of INR 10 cach) 3033 - 3033 26.00% TR
Ankit Kaushik (Equity share of INR 11} cach) 3,033 - anaa 26.00% 04K1%
Riitinan Majumder (Equity share of INR 10 each) 3,034 - 1034 26.0H% 0.00%
Total 9,100 - .10 THIN% LMY
As per records of the Company, including its register of shareholdzrs/ bers and other declarations reccived from sharchold ding beneficial intesest, the above sharcholding represents both Iepal and benelicial awncrships of shares.
For the period at which the balance sheet is preparcd, no ion pertaining to all of shares withoul payiment being reccived in cash was undertaben by the company, no bonus shares have been fssucd and ro shares have been bought back
by the company:

f.  Terms/ rights attached to Equity shares

The Company has one class of equity sharcs Baving a par value of Rs.10 per share. Each sharcholder is eligible for one vole per share held. The Company declarcs and pays dividends in Indian rupecs. The dividend proposed by the Board of
Dircelors is subject 1o the approval of the shareholders in the crsuing Annual General Meeting, exeept in case of interim dividend, In the event of liguidation, the equity sharcholders are cligible to recoive the remaining assets of the Company after
distribution of all pref anmounts, in proportion Lo their sharcholds

Terms/ rights attached to Preference Shares
{i) Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares (CCPS):

CCFS shall be T patory, compul. and fully ible prefc share and will have a par value of Rs. 104 {lndian Rupees Ten only} each, The CCPS shall be entitled to a dividend rate of (1% per annum of the face value of cach
CCPS held subject lo the declaration by the Board of Dircetors. The holders of these CCPS shall be entitled to vating rights in aceordance with applicable Laws

Each CCPS shall be corverted into | (Onc) cquity sharc upan receipt of conversion netice from the holder. 16 no conversion notice is recemved then autrematically converted into cquity shares. upon the completion of th teath anniversary {1 vears)
from the date of issue of CCPS, or in the event of listing pursuant to an IPO approved, whichever is carlicr,

CCPS shall rank sentor to the Equity Shares of the Company in all respeets including i relation to inlerest, dividends, bquidation and other distributions. The holders shall be entitled 10 be paid and otherwize receive distributions out af the
Liquidation Proceeds. on 2 pari passu basis and prior to any pavient or ather distribution to any halders of Equity Shares other than held by Lead investors. Also, COPS will be paid afler Seed COPS,

(i) Seed C Isory Convertibile Prefi Shares (CCPS):

Seed CCPS are o I . compulsorily and fully ible p shares and have a par value of Rs. 10~ (Indian Rupecs Ten onlv) cach, The Seed CCPS are entitled (6 @ dividend rate of 101 % per annum of the face
vithug of cach CCPS held subject to the declaration by the Board of Dircetors. Each holder of the Secd CCPS is entitled 10 veting rights couivalent o the number of equily shares which are issuablc upon comversion of all serics Seed CCPS into
Equity Shares bascd on the then applicable Seed Consersion Price,

Ench Sced CCPS may be converted into 1 {Ong) cquity sharc at any time al the option of the holder of Secd CCPS. Subjcet to compliance with Laws, cach Seed CCPS shall automatically be converted into Equity Sharcs upon the earlicr of:
(i) one day prior to the expiry of 20 (twenty} vears from the date of its issuanee: o
(1) in conncction with an 1PQ (o any: subscquent IPO), prior 1o the filing of a prosp {or cqui

o &

by whatever name called) by the Company with the competent authority o such later date as may be permitied under Law.
The holders shall be entitled to be paid and otherwise reccive distributions out of the Liquidation Procecds, prior to any payment or other distribution to any balders of Equity Sharos. Also, Seed CCFS will be pad afier Seres A CCPS.

{iii) Series A Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares {CCPS):

Series A CCPS are lative, non-p I and fully convertible preferance sharcs and have o par value of Rs. 107- (Indian Rupees Ten oy ) cach, The CCPS are entitled 10 a dividend rate of 0.01% per annum of the face
value of each CCPS held subjeet 10 the declaration by the Board of Directors. Each holder of the Serics A CCPS is entitled to voting rights equivalent 1o the number of cquity €harcs which ar issuable upon comversion of all Series A CCFS ints
Equity Shares based on the then applicable Series A Conversion Price,

Each Serics A CCPS may be converted into | {Onc) equily share at any time at 1he eption of the tiajarity sharchold
(i} ene day prior to the expiry of 20 (wenty) vears (rom the date of its issuance; or
(it} in connection with an PO {or any subsequent IPO), prior to the filing of a pi

. Subjeet 1o compl with Laws, each Scrics A CCPS shall automat ieally be converied inlo Equity Shares upon the earlicr of:

p {or lent ds - by whatever name called) by the Company with the competent authority or such later date as may be permitted under Law.

The holders shall be entitled 1o be paid and otherwse receive distribulions oul of 1he Liguidaion Proceeds, prior to any payment or other distribution 1o any holders of Equily Shares




Pickrr Technologies Private Limited
CIN: UT4140HR2015PTC057213
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

(All amounts in Rs. Millions, unless otherwise stated)

10 Other equity
As at As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 April 01, 2021
a. Retained earnings {1,489.08) (484.08) 38.30
b. Securities premium 829.43 82943 153.03
¢.Share-based payment reserve - 43.66 -
d. Equity contribution from holding company 44.01 - -
{615.63) 389.01 191.33
10(a) Retained earnings Amounts
As at April 01, 2021 38.30
Add: Loss for the year (522.81)
Add: Other comprehensive income for the year 0.43
As at March 31, 2022 (484.08)
Add: Loss for the year (1,050.84)
Add: Other comprehensive income for the year 220
Add: Transfer to reserve on cancellation of ESOP 43.66
As at March 31, 2023 (1,489.08)
10(b) Securities Premium Amounts
As at April 01, 2021 153.03
Add: Premium on shares issued during the year 676.40
As at March 31, 2022 829.43
Add: Premium on shares issued during the vear -
As at March 31, 2023 §29.43
10 (c) Share-based payment reserve Amounts
As at April 01, 2021 P
Add: Share based payment expense (refer note 37) 43.66
As at March 31, 2022 43.66
Add: Share based payment expense *(refer note 37) (43.66)
As at March 31, 2023 .
* Share based payment has been reversed during the year.
10 (d)  Equity contribution from holding company
As at April 01, 2021 .
Add: additional contribution during the year -
As at March 31, 2022 &
Add: additional contribution during the year (refer note 38) 44.01
As at March 31, 2023 44.01

Note:
Nature and purpose of Reserves

Securities Premium

Securities premium is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve can be utilised only

the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

Share Based Payment Reserve

for limited purposes such as issuance of bonus shares in accordance with

The share options-based payment reserve is used to recognise the grant date fair value of options issued to employees under Employee stock option plan,

Retained Earnings

Retained eamings are the profits/(loss) that the Company has earned/incurred till date,
shareholders. Retained eamings include re-measurement (loss)/pain on defined benefit plans,

Equity contribution from holding company

The reserves pertains to the Employee Stock Options granted to the Company's employees by the holding company

This space has been intentionally lefi blank

less any transfers to general reserve, dividends or other distributions paid to
net of taxes that will not be reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss,
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Notes to finnacial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2023

(Al amounts in Rs. Millions, unless otherwise stated)

12

13

O]
()

()

Provisions

Non-current
Provision for Gratuity {Refer note 28)
Total

Current

Pravision for Gratuity (Refer note 28)
Provision for compensated absences
Total

Total (ntb)

MNon- carrent
Current

Borrowings

Unsecured
Loan from related partv® (Refer note 32)

Agppregate Secured loans
Aggregate Unsecured loans

*Unsecured loan from related party is repayble on demand and carried inferest @ 72%pa

Trade payables

- total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (refer note 27 for details of dues to

micro and small enterprises

- total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises

Total

Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 60-50 day terms.

The amount due to micro, small and medium enterprises as defined in the "The Micre, Small and Medi

.

to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with Company

As at Asat As at
March 31,2023 March 31,2022 Aprl 01, 2021
14 87 8 80 399
14.87 5.80 3.99
032 014 010
13.28 586 164
13.60 6.00 1.74
28.47 14.79 573
14.87 .80 399
13.60 6.00 1.74
Asal As at As at
March 31,2023 March 31,2022 April 01, 2021
486.47 s -
486,47 - -
486,47 -
Asat Asat As at
March 31,2023 March 31,2022 April 01, 2021
56.11 12.32 -
460.23 35711 169.39
516.34 369.43 16939
Develop Aet, 2006 ("MSMED") has been determined

Trade Payab ing schedul
As at March 31, 2023
Outstanding for following |3|griods from transaction date
TExCy e Less than | year 1-2 years 2-3 years WRGTE i) ol
Years
(1) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small
enlerprises 56.11 - - 6.1
{i1) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro
enterrises and small enterprises 46023 - = 2 460.23
Total 5 = - - 516,34 |
As at March 31, 2022
Outstanding for following periods from transaction date
Earicaties Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years Morethan 3 Total
years
(i) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small 1232 - - - 12,32
(11} Total outstanding dues of ereditars other than micro
|enterpnises and small enterprises 35711 » - = 35711
Total 369.43 - - - 369.43
As at April 01, 2021
Quistanding for following periods from transaction date
BRetlary Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years ot tlonS sl
VEArs
(1) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small
enterprises - - - - -
(1) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro
enterprises and small enterprises 169.39 - - - 164,39
Total 169.39 - - - 169.39
—
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Other Financial Liabilities

Other Financial Liabilities Measured at Amortised Cost
Current
a} Amount payable, collected on behalf of the customers (net)

- Amount payable, collected on behall of the customers
- Less: Amount recoverable from courier vendor - Cash collected on our behalf'

b) Employee benefit pavable

¢} Interest on loan from related party

Total Other Current financial liabi

Other current linbilities

a) Contract liabilities
Customers Balance in Wallet

b) Statutory dues payable

Tax deducted at source pavable
Provident fund pavable

ES| pavable

Labour welfare fund payable

Total Other current liabilities

Current tax liabilities (net)

Current tax liabilities (net)

As at

As at

Asat

March 31,2023 March 31, 2022 April 01, 2021

336.47 389.77 189.19
157.83 149.60 5431
178.64 240.17 134.87
9.76 2,98 157

9.76 2.98 1.57

1818 - -
18.18 - »
206.58 243.15 136.44
Asat As at As at
March 31,2023 March 31,2022 April 01, 2021

65.49 50.92 10:33
65.49 50.92 10.33
2110 17.95 36.67

1.55 1.35 o9

0.00 .01 009

0.08 0.09 0.03

22.73 19.40 36.94
§8.22 70.32 47.27

As at As at As at
March 31,2023 March 31,2022 April 01, 2021

“ - 1006

% - 10.06
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(Al amounts in Rs. Millions, unless otherwise stated)

17 Revenue from operations

{a) Disaggregated revenue information
Set out below is the disaggregation of the Company's revenue from contracts with customers:

Type of zoods or service
Revenue from Merchant Solutions
Total revenue from operations

Note:

Given that Company's products and services are available on a technology platform to customers globally, consequently,

location of customers is not available.

Timing of revenue recognition

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
3.061.96 2,042,006
3,061.96 2,042.06

the necessary information to track accurate geographical

Services transferred at a point in time 3.061.96 2,042.06
Taotal revenue from operations 3,061.96 2,042.06
(b) Reconciling the amount of revenue recognised in the stat t of profit and loss with the contracted price:
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Revenue as per contracted price 3,061.96 2,042.06
Revenue from operations 3,061.96 2,042.06
(c) Contract balances
As at Asat Asat
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 April 01,2021
Trade Receivables (refer note 6b) 22229 295.58 131.72
Contract Assets - Unbilled Revenue (refer note 6e) 187.92 141.59 44.84
Contract Liabilities - Customers Balance in Wallet (refer note 15a) 65.49 5092 10.33
I8 Other income
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Interest income on:
- Bank deposits 0.86 2.57
- Income tax refund - 0,13
- Security deposits carried at amortised cost 0.42 0.27
Profit on sale of current investments (net) 0.86 482
Mark to Market on currrent Investment - 4.41
Liability written back - 118
Miscellaneous Income 041 2.54
Total 2.55 15.92
19 Employee benefits exy
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Salaries, wages and bonus 809.63 413.12
Contribution to provident and other funds 10.65 586
Gratuity Expense ( Refer note 28) 867 6.03
Share Based Payment Expense (Refer note 37) 44.01 43.66
Staff welfare expenses 8.45 8.08
881.41 476.75
20 Finance costs
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Interest on borrowings 20,20 "
Interest on lease liabilities (refer note 29) 236 2.26
Bank Charges 0,14 0.17
22,70 2.43
21 Depreciation and amortisation expense
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Depreciation of Property. plant and equipments (refer note 3) 18.09 13.07
Depreciation of Right-of-use asscts (refer note 4) 14.76 10.17
32.85 23.24
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CIN: UT4140HR2015PTC057213

Motes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
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22 Other expenses

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Rent (refer note 29) 1.94 153
Power and Fuel 374 244
Rates and Taxes 024 10.91
Insurance 5.35 220
Repair and Maintenance 5.42 3.87
Advertising and Sales Promotion 5114 94.86
Travelling and Conveyance 4,89 4.19
Courier and Logistics Expenses 2.587.78 1,732.32
Communication Costs 35.74 2854
Legal and Professional Fees 178.46 41.39
Office expenses 844 11.24
Payment to Auditor (Refer note below) 3.30 230
Recruitment Charges 2.99 6.84
Provision for doubtful debts (refer note 6b) 159,48 86.58
Corporate Social Responsibility Expense - 0.75
Information Technology and Server Expense 109.98 27.31
Payment Gateway Charges 13.01 7.07
Warehousing Expenses 5.07 308
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 0.1l "
Miscellaneous Expenses 1.31 0.43
Total 3,178.39 2,067.85
Naote
(i) Payment to auditors;
Statutory Audit Fees 330 230
Out of Pocket Expenses 0.77 =
4.07 1.30
Year ended Year ended
__ March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
23 Income taxes
(a) Income tax recognised in profit and loss
Deferred tax:
Origination and reversal of temporary differences - 10.52
Total deferred tax - 10.52
Total tax exy recognised in stat t of profit and loss - 10.52
24 Comp of Other Comprehensive I (ocH)
The disaggregation of changes to OCI by each type of reserve in equity is shown below
During the year ended 31 March 2023
: Equity instruments through . 5
Rectiolin Oﬂ(:ertr:omprehensiv: Incogme Butatniad serahupe Toml
Re-measurement gains (losses) on defined benefit plans - 2.20 2.20
- 2.20 2.20
During the year ended 31 March 2022
Equity instruments thro 2 i
Farticulos Ol:er%omprl:shensive In:ngmhe Refainmt ascamngs s
Re-measurement gains (losses) on defined benefit plans 043 0.43
- 0,43 0.43
25 Loss per share (EPS)
(=} Basic carnings per equity share has been computed by dividing net profit afier tax by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding for the year.
Diluted earings per equity share has been co puted using the weighted average number of equity shares and dilutive potential equity shares outstanding during the year.
(b) The following reflects the profit and share capital data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:
Units Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
{Loss)/Profit for the year INR Millions (1,050.84) (522.81)
Weighted average number of equity shares for calculating Basic EPS Number 23.106 20,882
Weighted average number of equity shares for calculating Diluted EPS Number 23,106 20,882
Basic EPS [Nominal value INR 10 per share (March 31, 2022 - INR 10 per share)] INR (45,479.25) {25.035.86)
Diluted EPS [Nominal value INR 10 per share {March 3 1, 2022 - INR 10 per share)] INR (45,479.25) (25,035.86)
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26 Significant accounting judgements, esti and
The preparation of the fi ial st requires 12 to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that

require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods,

Other disclosures relating to the Company’s exposure to risks and uncertainties includes:

» Capital management (refer note 36)

» Financial risk management objectives and policies (refer note 39)

Judgements )

In the process of applying the accounting policies, management has made the following judgements, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recopnised in the
financial statements:

Determining the lease term of contracts with r al and terminati ptions — C y as lessee
‘The Company determines the lease term as the non-caneellable term of the lease, together with any periods covered by an option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to

be exercised, or any periods covered by an option to tenminate the lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be exercised.

The Company has several lease contracts that include extension and termination options. The Company applies judgement in evaluating whether it is reasonably certain
whether or not to exercise the option to renew or terminate the lease, That 1s, it considers all relevant factors that create an economic incentive for it to exercise either the
renewal or termination. After the cc date, the Company r the lease term if there is a significant event or change in circumstances that is within its control
and affects its ability to exercise or not to exercise the option to renew or to terminate (e.g., construction of significant leasehold improvements or significant customisation fo
the leased asset).

Refer to Note 29 for information on potential future rental payments relating to periods following the exercise date of extension and termination options that are not included in

the lease term.

Esti and

The key assumptions conceming the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to
the cammying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Company based its ptions and esti on parameters available

when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or
circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company, Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur,

Impairment of Non-financial assets

Impaimment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its recoversble amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its
value in use. The fair value less costs of disposal calculation is based on available data from binding sales transactions, conducted at arm's length, for similar assets or
observable market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. The value in use caleulation is based on a DCF model. The cash flows are derived from the budget
for the next five years and do not include restructuring activities that the Company is not yet committed to or significant future investments that will enhance the asset’s
performance of the CGU being tested. The recoverable amount is sensitive to the discount rate used for the DCF model as well as the expected future cash-inflows and the
growth rate used for extrapolation purposes. These esti are most relevant to goodwill and other intangibles with indefinite useful lives recognised by the Company.

Share Based Payments

Employees of the company receive remuneration in the form of share based payment transactions, whereby employees render services as consideration for equity instruments
(equity-settled transactions). In accordance with the Ind AS 102 Share Based Payments, the cost of equity-settled iransactions is measured using the fair value method, The
cumulative expense recognized for equity-settled transactions at each reporting date until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired and the
company’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ulti ly vest, The exp or credit recognized in the statement of profit and loss for a period
the mo in lative recognized as af the beginning and end of that period and is recogmized in employee benefits expense.

p

Defined benefit plans (gratuity benefits)
The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making

various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the di rate, future salary increases and mortality rates.
Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these ptions, All ptions are
reviewed at each reporting date.

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate for plans op 1, the TH - lers the interest rates of

gavernment bonds in currencies consistent with the currencies of the post-employment benefit obligation,
The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality table . The mortality table tend to change only at interval in response to demographic changes. Future salary
increases and gratuity increases are based on expected future inflation rates. Further details about gratuity obligations are given in note no. 20,

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is
measured using valuati hniques including the DCF mode]. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a
degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk. credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions
about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments,

Useful life of Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, if any. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the plant and
equipment. When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives.
Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and equip as arepl if the recognition criteria are
satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred

Depreciation on all property plant and equipment are provided on a written-down value method based on the estimated useful life of the asset. The management has estimated
the useful lives and residual values of all preperty, plant and equipment and adopted useful lives based on management’s assessment of their respeciive economic useful lives
The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if
appropriate, Depreciation on the assets purchased during the year is provided on pro-rata basis from the date of purchase of the assets. An item of property, plant and
equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or
loss arising on Derccognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the camying amount of the asset) is mcluded in the income
statement when the asset is derecognised.
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27 Details of dues to micro and small enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006

The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of each accounting vear

As at Asat As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 April 01, 2021
- Principal amount due to micro and small enterprises 5611 12.32 -
- Interest due on above - - i

The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the MSMED Act 2006

along with the amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day - = -
during each accounting year

The of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which - - -
have been paid but beyond the appointed making payment (which have been paid but beyond

the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the

MSMED Act 2006,

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year - = .
The of further i ining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until 4 " i

such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise for the
purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED Act
2006

56.11 12.32 -

The above information regarding dues to micro enterprises and small enterprises as defined under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act
(MSMED), 2006 has been determined to the extent identified and information available with the company pursuant to Section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium
enterprises Development Act (MSMED), 2006,
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28 Employee Benefits

A. Defined Contribution Plans

The Company makes contribution towards Provident Fund and Pension Scheme to the defined contribution plans for eligible employees.

The Company has charged the following costs in Contribution to Provident Fund and Other Funds in the Statement of Profit and Loss:-

i For the year ended For the year ended
Prxedan March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Employer’s contribution to Provident fund and pension schemes 10.37 5.60
Employer's contribution to Employees State Insurance 0.02 0.08
Employer's contribution to Employees National Pension System 2.63 -
Total 13.02 5.68

B. Defined Benefit Plans

Gratuity:

The gratuity plan is governed by the Payment of Gratuity Aet, 1972. Under the Act, employees who have completed five years of service are entitled to specific benefit.
The level of benefit provided depends on the member's length of service and salary retirement age. The employee is entitled to a benefit equivalent to 15 days salary last
drawn for each completed year of service with part thereof in excess of six months subject to maximum limit of INR 2 million. The same is payable on termination of
service or retirement or death whichever is earlier.

The present value of the obligation under such defined benefit plan is determined based on an actuarial valuation as at the reporting date using the projected unit credit
method, which recognises each year of service as giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the final
obligation. The obligations are measured at the present value of the estimated future cash flows. The discount rate used for determining the present value of the
obligation under defined benefit plans is based on the market yields on Government bonds as at the date of actuarial valuation. Actuarial gains and losses (net of tax) are
recognised immediately in the Other Comprehensive Income (OCI).

The Company has a unfunded defined benefit gratuity plan
The following tables summarise the components of net benefit expense recognised in the statement of profits or losses and amounts recognised in the balance sheet for
the respective plans:

(i) Benefit liability
As at As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 April 01, 2021

Present value of obligation at beginning of the year 8.94 4,09 -
Interest cost 0.65 0.28 -
Current service cost 8.02 575 1.24
Past Service Cost including curtailment Gains/Losses - 2.85
Actuarial (loss)/gain on obligation = -

- Economic assumptions (0.30) (0.42) -

- Demographic assumptions u - -

- Experience adjustment (1.90) (0.01) =
Benefits paid ((1.22) (0.75) -
Present value of obligation at the closing of the vear 1519 8.94 4,09

(i) Gratuity Cost recognised in the Stat of Profit and Loss:-
For the year ended For the year ended
Mareh 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Current service cost 802 575
Interest cost (165 0.28
Past Service Cost including curtailment Gains/Losses & -
Exp recognised in the Stat t of Profit and Loss* 8.67 6.03
(iiiy Gratuity Cost recognised through Other Comprehensive Income:-
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Actuarial gains
- change in economic assumptions (0.30) (0.42)
- change in demographic assumptions . =
- experience variance (i.e. Actual experience vs assumptions) (1.90) (0.01)
(2,20) (0.43)
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(iv)

(v)

(vi)

The principal actuarial assumptions used for estimating the Company's defined benefit obligations are set out below:
As at As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 April 01, 2021
Discount rate 7.39% 7.26% 6.76%
Future salary merease 7.00% 7.00% 7.00%
Average expected future working life (years) . 30.38 31.07 ' 31.12
Expected rate of return on plan asset
Retirement age (years) . 60 Years 60 Years
. . . - T 100% of IALM 100% of 1ALM 100% of IALM
i £
Mortality rates inclusive of provision for disability (2012 - 14 (2012 - 14) (2012 - 14)
Withdrawal rate (per annum)
- Up to 30 years 3.00% 5.00% 5.00%
- From 31 years to 44 years 3.00% 3.00% 3.00%
- Above 44 years 2.00% 2.00% 2.00%

*Indian Assured Lives Mortality (2012-14) Ultimate represents published mortality table used for mortality assumption,

A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption is as shown below:
As at As at

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Impact of the change in discount rate
a} Impact due to increase of 0.50 % (1.23) (0.74)
b) Impact due to decrease of 0,50 % 1.38 0.84
Impact of the change in salary increase
a) Impact due to increase of 0.50 % 1.12 0.68
b) Impact due to decrease of 0.50 % (1.02) (0.61)

The sensitivity analyses above have been detennined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on the defined benefit obligation as a result of reasonable changes
in key assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting year. These analysis are based on a change in a significant assumption, keeping all other assumptions constant
and may nol be representative of an actual change in the defined benefit obligation as it is unlikely that changes in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another.

The following payments are expected contributions to the defined benefit oblig in future years:
As at As at

__ March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
Within the next 12 months (next annual reporting period) 0.32 0.13
Between 2 and 5 years 1.18 0.63
Between 5 and 10 years 13.69 8.18
Beyond 10 years 7 -
Total expected payments 15,19 8,94

The average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation at the end of the reporting period is 19.01 years (31 March 2022: 19,13 years)
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29 Leases
Company as a Lessee

The Company has adopted Ind AS 116 'Leases' using the modified retrospective approach from April I, 2021. On recognition, the company has recognised a right-of-
use asset and corresponding lease liability of Rs. 19.89 million. The Company has lease contracts for warchouses and office spaces used in its operations. These
generally have lease terms between | and 5 years.The Company’s obligations under its leases are secured by the lessor’s title to the leased assets, There are several
lease contracts that include extension and termination options and variable lease payments, which are further discussed below

The Company also has certain leases contracts for office premises and certain facilities with lease terms of 12 months or less and leases of office premises and certain
facilities with low value. The Company applies the ‘short-term lease’ and ‘lease of low-value assets’ recognition exemptions for these leases.

Set out below are the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets recognised and the movements during the year:

Particulars Total,
As at April 1, 2021 20.50
Additions 23.19
Deletions -
Depreciation expense (10.17)
As at March 31, 2022 33.52
Additions -
Deletions -
Depreciation expense (14.76)
As at March 31, 2023 18.76
Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities recognised and the mo during the year:

Particulars Total
As at April 1, 2021 19.89
Additions 23.19
Deletions -
Accretion of interest 226
Payments (11.87)
As at March 31, 2022 33.46
Additions -
Deletions -
Aceretion of interest 2.36
Payments (16.27)
As at March 31, 2023 19.55

The following is the break-up of current and non-current lease liabilities:

Particulars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022 As at April 1, 2021

Lease Liabilities (Non-current) 495 19.54 13.65

Lease Liabilities (Current) 14.60 13.92 6.24

Total 19.55 33.46 19.89

1. The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed.

2. The effective interest rate for lease liabilities is 9.15%, with maturity between 2023-2025.

The following are the amounts recognised in profit or loss:

Particalass For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets 14.76 10.17

Interest expense on lease liabilities 2.36 226

Expense relating to short-term leases (included in other expenses) 1.94 1,53

Total amount recognised in profit or loss 19.06 13.96

30 Current Tax and Deferred Tax

Provision for current tax is not required to be made as the Company has business losses during the year and also has brought forward losses, Since, it is not probable
that the Company will generate future taxable profits, no deferred tax asset has been recognized on tax losses,

31 Cemmitments and Contingent liabilities
a. Commitments

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided lor;

b. Contingent Liabilities
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32 Related Party Transactions
(Related party under Ind AS 24)

A. Name of Related parties and related party relationship
Holding Company Bigloot Retail Solutions Private Limited (with effect from June 24, 2022)

Key Management Personnel

Rhitiman Majumder Director (resigned with effect from June 22, 2022)
Ankat Kaushik Director (resigned with effect from June 22, 2022)
Gaurav Mangla Director

Gautam Kapoor Director (appointed with effect from June 22, 2022)
Saahil Goel Director (appointed with effect from June 22, 2022)
Kumar Tanmay Director (appointed with effect from June 22, 2022)

B. Details of transactions and balances with related parties during the year:

Particula As at As at
s March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Revenue from Merchant Solutions
Bigfoot Retail Solutions Private Limited 3592 -
Interest on borrowings
Bigfoot Retail Solutions Private Limited . 20.20 -
On behalf payment received (Cr.)
Bigfoot Retail Solutions Private Limited 1.34 -
Borrowing taken during the year
Bigfoot Retail Solutions Private Limited 486.47 -
Remuneration of key managerial personnel®
Rhitiman Majumder (till June) 1.54 7.00
Ankit Kaushik (till June) 1.94 7.00
Gaurav Mangla 12.82 7.00
*Excludes employer's contribution to provident fund and gratuity
C. Outstanding balances:
Particulirs Year ended Year ended As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 April 1, 2021
Borrowing
Bigfoot Retail Solutions Private Limited 48647 - -

Interest on borrowings
Bigfoot Retail Solutions Private Limited 18.18 - -

Trade receivable
Bigfoot Retail Solutions Private Limited 24.39 - -

33 Segment Information
The Company is engaged in providing logistics services and other ancillary activities of a similar nature in a single segment. Based on “Management Approach”, as
defined in Ind AS 108 — Operating Segments, the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) evaluates the performance and allocates resources based on the analysis of
performance of the Company as a whole. Its operations are, therefore, considered to constitute a single segment in the context of Ind AS 108 — Operating Segments.

==This space has been intentionally left blank =
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35

Fair values
Set out below, & & companson by class of the carmying amounts and fur value of the Company’s financial instruments, including those with carrying amounts that are reasonable approximations of
fair values:

The carrving value and far value of financial instruments by categories as of March 31, 2023 were as follows:
Financial assetsiabilities at fair value through

Particulars Note No. Amortised Cost Other Comprehensive Carrying amount
Profit or loss

Income
Assets:
Trade receivables © 6h 22229 - - 22239
Cash and cash equivalents Be 13789 - - 13789
Bank balances other than Cash and cash equivalents 6ud 254 - - 284
Security deposils Ge 3.29 - - 329
Other financial Assets {current) be 193.12 - - 19312
Total 550.43 - - 550.43
Liabilities:
Borrowings 12 486 47 - - A486.47
Lease Liabtlities {non-current) 29 495 - - 495
Lease Liabilities (current) 29 14.60 - - 14.60
Trade Payables 13 516.35 - - 51635
Other Financial Liabilities 14 206 58 - - 206,58
Total 1.228.95 - - 1,228.95
The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by catepories as of March 31, 2022 were as follows
Financial assets/Tiabilities at fair value through
Particulars Note No. Amortised Cost Other Comprehensive Carrying amount
Profit or loss
_Income
Assets:
Investments (current) Ga - 25441 - 254.41
Trade recenvables ab 29558 - - 205.58
Cash and cash equivalents Ge 195,94 - - 195,94
Bank balances other than Cash and cash equivalents 6d 5478 - - 5478
Security deposits e 5.97 - - 597
Other financizl Assets (current) fie 144 23 B - 144.23
Total 6%6.50 254.41 - 950.91
Liabilities:
Lease Liabilities (non-current) 29 1954 - - 19.54
Lease Liabilities (current) 29 1392 - - 13.92
Trade Pavables 13 369 43 - - 16943
Other Financial Laabilities 14 24315 - - 243 15
Total 64604 - - 646,04
The carrving value and fair value of financial instruments by catenories as of Apnil 1. 2021 were as fallows
& Financial assets/liabilities at fair value through
Particulars MNote No, Amortised Cost Other Comprehensive Carrying amount
Profit or loss
Income
Assets:
Trade receivables Gh 131.72 - - 131,72
Cash and cash equivalents 6¢ 30856 - - 308.56
Bank balances other than Cash and cash equivalents 6 5283 - - 5283
Secunty deposits G 2.77 = - 277
Other financial Assets {cumrent) te 45.10 - - 4510
Total 54097 - - 540.97
Linbilities:
Lease Liabalities {non-current) 29 1365 - - 1365
Lease Liabiliies {current) 20 6.24 - = 624
Trade Payables 13 169.39 - - 169.39
Other Finangial Liabilities 14 136,44 - - 136,44
Total 325,72 - = 325,72
The foll w methods/ ions were used to the farr values;
The management assessed that cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, trade payables, bank overdrafis and other current lighilities pp! their carmying targely due to the short-

term maturities of these instruments
The furr values of investment in mutual funds 15 based on price quotations o the repoarting date.

Fair value hierarchy
All fingneml instruments for which fair value is recogmised or disclosed are categonsed within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level mput that 15 significant to
the fair value mensurement as a whole

Level 1: This level of hierarchy includes financial assets that are measured by refi to quoted | i} d) prices in active markets for 1dennical assets or habilities

Level 2. This level of hicrarchy includes financial assets that are measured using inputs, other than quoted prices included within level 1, that are observable for such items, directly or indirectly
Level 3. This level of hierarchy includes items measured using a valuation model based on assumptions that are neither supporied by prices from observable current market transactions in the
same instruments nor based on available market data

Specific valuation technigues used to value financial mstruments 1s discounted cash low analysis

The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Company's assets and liabilites
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Fair value measurement hierarchy for assets as at March 31, 2023;

Fair value measurement usinj

Particulars Total Quoted prices in active | Significant observahle Significant
’ markets inputs unobservable inputs
{Level 1) {Level 2) {Level 3)
Financial assels measured at fair value
Investments at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)
- Mutual funds = = =
Fi ial liahilities at Fair value
Other financial liablities . = -
Fair value measurenient hierarchy for assets as at March 31, 2022:
Fair value measurement usi
y Quoted prices in active | Significant observable Significant
P Total
Rrtieufans i markets inputs unobservable inputs
{Level 1) (Level 2) {Level 3)
Fi ial assets measured at fair value
Investments at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)
- Mutual funds 25441 254.4] -
254.41 254.41 - -
Financial liabilities measured at Fair value
Other financial liablities & = & 3
Fair value measurement hieran:gz for assets as at April 01, 2021
Fair value measurement usi
Prfioubis: Total Quoted prices in active | Significant observable Significant
markets inputs unobservable inputs
{Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Financial assets measured at fair value
Investments at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)
= Mutual funds # % i
Financial liabilities measured at Fair value
Other financial liablities = § - -
Reconciliatior of Level | fair value measurement is as follows:
. Asat As at
Parti
ety March 31,2023 March 31,2022
Balance at the beginning of the year 254.41 -
Addition during the year (254 41) 254.41
Fair value (loss)gain on fi ial i at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income - =
Balance at the end of the year - 254.41
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36 Capital Management

For the purpose of the company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, instruments entirely equity in nature, securities premium and all other equity
reserves attributable to the equity holders of the company. The primary objective of the company's capital management is to maximise the shareholder value,

The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to:

» Safeguard their ability to continue as a going concern, so that they can continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders; and

* Maintain an optimal capital structure fo reduce the cost of capital,

The Company monitors capital by regularly reviewing the capital structure. As a part of this review, the Company considers the cost of capital and the risks associated with the
issued share capital. In the opinion of the Directors, the Company’s capital risk is low.

As at

Parlonlie e Marc:s;lt, 2023 Mar;:|83alt. 2022 April 01, 2021
Borrowings 12 486.47 - -
Lease Liabilities 29 19.54 3347 19.89
Less: Cash and cash equivalents bc {137.89) (195.94) (308 .56)
Less: Investment in mutual funds 6a - (254.41) -
Less: Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 6d (2.84) (54.78) (52.83)
Net Debt (A) 365.29 (471.66) (341.50)
Total equity (615.40) 389.24 191.51
Total Equity (B) (615.39) 389.24 191.52
Gearing ratio 509 Mot applicable since company does not have net debt

as at year end

In order to achie'e this overall objective, the Group’s capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets financial covenants attached to the interest-bearing
loans and borrowings that define capital structure requirements, Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would permit the bank to immediately call loans and borrowings.
There have been no breaches in the financial covenants of any interest-bearing loans and borrowing in the current period.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the March 31, 2023, March 31, 2022 and April 01, 2021,
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37 Share-based pavments
The Compuny provides share hased pavirent scheme to ils emoyees. I previous fnociol vear ended March 31, 2022, an enmplovee stock e plans was m enistence. The relevant detas of the scheae and grant are as follows:
On 23 Apsil 21, the board of direstors apgroved he Equity seliled ESOP scheme 1021 (Hchume H21) for s of slock options o key enplayecs wnd direors of e company. According to the Scheme 221, selocted emphiyess will he entitled o
certain number of options, as decided by . subject Lo safi: of e vesting wie, continued emnph with the Coanpeany far u prescribed persed of tme Tlwever, tle selicme bl been cancelled subssquently vike

T3oard resolution dated May 26, 2022 The olher relevant serms of the grant are as follows,

Vesting perfod _ (from date of grant) Vesting porcentage
Al the end of §st sizar frotn the grant date 25.0%

At the end of 2nd vear from the grond date B 250%

AL the erd of 3nd vear from the prant date 230%

LA the end of b vear from the gront dote 2500
Comversion ralin One share per option

Exercise price Bs, 1 per option

The details of actwity wnder the sl sine s fillows:

Asat Asat Asut
ch 31, 2023 Mirch 31, 2023 April 1, 2021
g 3 i ' Wi i xerelse
No. oF aptions w:mi""::“‘ Nu. aF aptions w:'“""f‘i‘:“:l::““ o, of uptions it T
Chaistanding ot the bepianing of the year 1454 n = =
Gronted during the yenr - - [ L0 m
Farfeited during the e L 454 1] 5 2 - -
Exercisend during the year 3 - < 5 & =
Outstandsnig at the end of the yvear - = 1454 (0] - -
Exercisable al the end of the yeur - - -
The weighted average exervise price is Bs 1 per shore. Mo options have been exervised duning e corent Year
The weighted averape remaining eantrachsl 5ife for the sock aptions. outstanicliing =5 st Morch 31, 2022 15 345 years
As gt A at As ot
Murch 31. 2023 March 31, 2022 April 1. 2021
Dvidend yield (o) 2 E =
Expected solatality - 47.40% -
Risk free intenst rale - 590% =
Wesghted average share price . U624
Eeruise price (R ) - (0]
iupected lifie of options granted in vears - 4

The expected life of the stock 15 based en hisgtorical dote and cerre anpectufions and 15 nol nesessunily indicative of exencise patterns it may eecar. The epected voliolity nefleces the assunption that the histanet volitalily over 4 period apmlar

ihe lifie of eptions is mdicative of fture iremds, which iy abso of necessarily be the actual oateome

F: Share aptions Share options vatstanding
Granl date Expirydute VPR "T"‘ PHRE asatshare opthins granted -ulmndi: asan  OTAT “:'h"::'l’:;u‘!'“ s 0s l
FeLoame March 31, 2023 L April 1, 2021

=21 D1-Tun-25 o0 %29 Z #24 -
i -Jul-21 ]-Jul-23 LLEERH 62 - 3062 i
U-pov-21 (H -Mov-25 it 2 - n
i-Dee-21 D23 ([T} (13 - [}
(1-Jan-22 kiR 47 I 47 .
20-Jan-22 Lok enr M - k2] -
-Feha22 (R liy - 16
0)-Mue-22 1 126 - 126

1354 - 1454

34 Contribation from Holding company :
Douring the year 2022-23, the holdiug company estabished Fiigfoot Asquired Bosinesses Fmploye Stock Option Plan 2022 ("ESOP 20227} and the same vas apgroved by the shisehalders in theie meeting vn (71 June 2022 (~FGM Mesting”)
outhorizing the Bourd 1o issee Englosee Stock Opticns 1o the Emplovees ander LSOP 2023 The Pl was set up s a5 10 wffer and grant, for the benefit of the Compam . 1ls Subsidiany i or outsae Indi. and its Hobding Company 1 ooy, and apy
successor Company thercol sid miy be prantid o the Employess of the Company, or of its Subsdiary Comgunyies), oe ils Holdmg Company, as determined by the Toard ot ts sole discretion, uplions of the Compmiy in ore or mere tranches, and on
“uch terms and condilions as may be Gxed or determaned by the Hourd. in accondanies with the ESOF scheme Iuging the vear encled 31 March 2023, the comnpany has recogiised ¢ypenses amoustiog 1o [NR 4400 mallion (31 Mareh 2022 NIL 1 licar)
in accordence with the said amingemen|

Grant 1
Bkl Fethe sear bl | e the year endd Mareh 31, 2022

[3ale of Grant []=Sup-22
Dte of Vesting 143 of optians each
r Lus
Ixergise lrice [In Ra | 1

ions al the beginning of the year - i
9!""‘5 Ciranted during the period {Nos) 408G -
Cipttons forfeited dusing the period (Meg) & =
Cplions exercised durmg the period (Nos) -
Olplions Tapsed during the perid (Nos 441
4 ing ot the erd of the period (Nos) 3085
Eﬂ]‘l Walue of the Options [In Rs. | Mz

e weighted avernge remaining contesctual 1ife for the stock optans outstanding a5 at March 31, 2073 15 5.5 yesars (March 71, 3022 - Nil Soears, Apnl 1, 2021 - Nl yenrs). The exeneis prives for options ailsfindimg ot (e year end was s B {Masch
31, 2022 - Rs. Nil Apeil 1. 2021 - Rs. Nil). The weighted avernge Gur value for the stoek eptions gruted disiig the year is s, 40120095 (Morch 31, 2022 - s, Nil. Apral |, 2021 - Bs Nil) The following tobles list the nipits 10 the modds used for
A Stock option plons for the vear ended Mareh 31, 2023, March 31 2013 and Aprl 1, 2021 respectively

Particulars Asat As at Asat
 March31, 2023 March 31, 2023 April L2021

Expected volotility (%) 4218 NA Na

Risk free Interest rate (%) 615% NA HA

Expected lifie of share aptions 3.50 HA A

Woighted aversge share price {m Rs ) 34028 B A

Modal used Iilack-schales Option Procing Mece| MNA NA
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39 Fi ial Risk M Objectives and Policies
The Company's activities are exposed to variety of financial risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and foreign currency risk. The Company's senior management oversees the
manzagement of these risks. The Company’s senior management ensures that the Company’s financial risk activities are govemned by appropriate policies and procedures

and that financial risks are identified d and ged in accordance with the Company’s policies and risk objectives. The Company reviews and agrees on policies
for managing each of these risks which are summarized below:
(a) Market Risk

Market risk 1s the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will 1 b of cl in market prices. Market risk comprises three types
of risk: interest rate risk, foriegn currency risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk and commaodity risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include loans
and borrowings, deposits, debt and equity investments and derivative financial instruments

The sensitivity analyses in the following sections relate to the position as at March 31, 2023; March 31, 2022 and April 1, 2021.

The analyses exclude the impact of movements in market variables on the carrying values of gratuity and ather post-retirement obligations; prowisions; and the non-
financial assets and labilities of foreign operations.

The followmng assumptions have been made in caloulating the sensitivity analyses;

- The sensitivity of the relevant profit or loss item is the effect of the assumed changes in respective market risks. This is based on the financial assets and financial
liabilities held at March 31, 2023; March 31, 2022 and April 1, 2021.

(i) Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market nterest rates. As majority of the
financial assets and liabilities of the Company are either non-interest bearing or fixed interest bearing instruments, the Company s net exposure to interest tisk is negligible.
(i} Foreign Currency Risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The entire revenue and
majority of the expenses of the Company are denominated in Indian Rupees.

Impact on profit and loss

Change in For the year ended For the year ended

Fartiuln Exchangerate  March31,2023  March 31,2022
Change i USD rate

Increase +5% -0.06 g
Decrease -5% 0.06 %

(iil) Equity Risk
The Company's listed and non-listed equity securities are susceptible to market price risk arising from uncertainties about future values of the investment securities.
However, the company does not have investments

(b) Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that a counter party will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The Company is
exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables), including deposits with banks and financial institutions, foresgn exchange transactions and
other financial instruments.

(i) Trade receivables
Trade receivables are typically unsecured. Credit risk is managed by the Company through credit approvals, establishing credit hmits and continuously monitoring the
creditworthiness of customers to which the Company grants credit terms in the normal course of business.

The ageing analysis of trade receivables as of the reporting date 1= as follows:

Particulars Not Due 0 to 60 days 60 to 120 days 120 to 180 days More than 180 days Total
Asat March 31, 2023 - 283.26 189.24 - = 47249
As at March 31, 2022 = 335.47 57.67 - - 393.14
As at April 01, 2021 - 131.72 - - - 131,72
* The ageing of trade receivables does not include expected credit loss
(i) Expected credit loss for trade receivables using simplified approach As at As at As at
= March 31,2023 March 31,2022 April 01,2021
Gross carrying amount 8220 2634 -
Expected credit losses (Loss allowance provision) 14582 5586 26.34
Carrying amount of trade receivables (net of impairment) 228.02 8220 26.34
(c) Liquidity risk

Liguidity risk is the risk that the Company may not be able to meet its present and future cash and eollateral obhgations without incurring unacceptable losses. The
Company's objective is to, at all times maintain optimum levels of liquidity to meet its cash and collateral requirements. The Company closely monitors its liquidity position
and deploys a robust cash management system. It maintains adequate sources of financing including loans from banks at an optimised cost.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities based on contractual undiseounted payments,

As at March 31,2023 Carrying amount On Demand Upto | Year More than 1 year Total

Borrowings 486,47 486,47 - - 486.47
Lease Liabilities 19.54 - 1460 495 19.54
(v} Others Financial Liabilities 206 58 - 206,58 - 206.58
Trade payables 516.35 - 516.35 = 51635
Total 1,228.94 486.47 737.53 4.95 1,228.94
As at March 31, 2022 Carrying amount On Demand Upto 1 Year More than 1 year Total

Lease Liabilities 3347 - 13.92 1954 33.47
(1v) Others Financial Liabilities 243.15 - 24315 - 243.15
Trade payables 369.43 5 36943 - 369.43
Total 646.05 - 626.50 19.54 646.05
As at April 01,2021 Carrying amount On Demand Upto 1 Year More than | year Total

Lease Liabilities 19,89 - 6.24 13.65 19.89
(iv) Others Financial Liabilities 13644 - 136.44 - 13644
Trade payables 16939 - 169.39 - 169.39
Total 32572 - 312.06 13.65 325.72
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40 First time adoption of Ind AS

These financial statements for the year ended 315t March, 2023 are the first financial statements the Company has prepared in accordance with lnd AS considering the date of
transition as on April 1, 2021. For periods up to and including the year ended 31st March, 2022, the Company prepared its fi ial in lance with ace ing
standards notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read together with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time
fo time) and presentation requirements of Division 11 of Schedule 111 to the Companies Act, 2013, (Ind AS compliant Schedule 111) [Indian GAAP].

Accordingly, the Company has prepared financial stat which comply with Ind AS applicable for periads ending on 31st March, 2023, together with the comparative period
data as at and for the year ended 315t March, 2022, as described in the summary of sipnificant accounting policies. In preparing these financial the Company's opening
balance sheet was prepared as at Ist April, 2021, the Company's date of transition to Ind AS, This note explains the principal adjustments made by the Company in restating its
Indian GAAP financial statements, including the balance sheet as at 15t April, 2021 and the financial statement as at and for the year ended 3 1st March, 2022,

E ptions and P availed

a) Ind AS eptional exemptions

a.1 Deemed cost
Ind AS 101: First time adoption of Indian Accounting Standards permits a first-time adopter to elect fo continue with the carrying value for all ofits property, plant and
equipment as recognised in the financial statements as at the date of ition to Ind AS, d as per the previous GAAP and use that as its deemed cost as at the date of
transition. This exemption can also be used for intangible assets covered by Ind AS-38: Intangible Assets,
For all classes of property, plant and equipment and intangible asset existing as on 15t April, 2021, i.e. date of transition to Ind AS, the Company has used Indian GAAP
canying value as deemed cost as permitted by Ind-AS 101. Accordingly, the net written down value (WDV) as per Indian GAAP as on st April, 2021 has been considered as
gross block under Ind-AS for other classes of property, plant and equipment.

b} Ind AS mandatory exemptions

b.1 Estimates
An entity’s estimates in accordance with Ind ASs at the date of transition to Ind AS shall be comsistent with estimates made for the same date in accordance with previous
GAAP (after adjustments to reflect any difference in accounting policies), unless there is objective evidence that those estimates were in error,
Ind AS estimates as at | April 2021 are consistent with the estimates as at the same date made in conformity with previous GAAP, The Company made estimates for following
items in accordance with Ind AS at the date of transition as these were not required under previous GAAP:
On assessment of estimates made under the Previous GAAP fi ial st the Company has concluded that there is no necessity to revise such estimates under Ind AS,
as there is no objective evidence of an error in those estimates. The estimates at 1st April 2021 and 31st March 2022 are consistent with those made for the same dates in
accordance with Indian GAAP apart from the following item where application of Indian GAAP did not require estimation -
- Impairment of trade receivables based en expected credit loss model
The estimates used by the Company to present amount of trade receivables in accordance with Ind AS reflect conditions at 1st April 2021, the date of transition to Ind AS and
as of 31st March 2022,

b.

L]

Derecognition of financial assets and liabilities

Ind AS 101, First-time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards, requires a firsi-time adopter to apply the de-recognition provisions of Ind AS 109, financial instruments,
prospectively for ir ions accurring on or after the date of transition to Ind AS. However, Ind AS 101, Firsi-time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards, allows a first-
time adopter to apply the de-recognition requirements in Ind AS 109, financial instruments, retrospectively from a date of the entity’s choosing, provided that the information
needed to apply Ind AS 109, financial i to financial assets and financial liabilities derecognised as a result of past transactions was obtained at the time of initially
accounting for those transactions. The Company has elected 1o apply the de-recognition provisions of Ind AS 109, financial instruments, prospectively from the date of

b.3 Classification and measurement of financial assets and liabilities
The classification and measurement of financial assets will be made considering whether the conditions as per Ind AS 109, financial instruments are met based on facts and
cireumnstances existing at the date of transition.

Financial assets can be measured using effective interest method by assessing ils contractual cash flow characteristics only on the basis of facts and circumstances existing at
the date of transition and if it is impracticable to assess elements of modified time value of money i.e. the use of effective interest method, fair value of financial asset at the

date of transition shall be the new carrying amount of that asset. The measurement exemption applies for financial liabilities as well,

Applying a requirement is impracticable when the entity cannot apply it affer making every reasonable effort to do so. It is impracticable to apply the changes refrospectively

if:

a) The effects of the retrospective application or retrospective are not determinable; or

b) The retrospective appl or rest requites assumptions about what management's intent would have been in that period; or

c) The retrospective application or retrospective restatement requires significant esti of and it is impossible to distinguish objectively information about those

¢) Reconciliations between previously reported Indian GAAP {IGAAP) and Ind AS
Ind AS 101, First-time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards, requires an entity to reconcile equity, Balance Sheet, statement of profit and loss and cash flows for prior
periods. The following tables represent the reconciliations from erstwhile Indian GAAP to Ind AS as at the periods specified below.

Reconciliation of total equity between IGAAP and Ind AS:

Particulars Notes As at 31 March 2022 | Asat1 April
Total equity (shareholder’s funds) as per Previous GAAP 385.81 191.51

Add / (Less): Adjustments on account of transition to Ind AS:
(D) Adjustment on account of transition to Ind AS 116 " Leases"

(2) lmpact of creation of ROU asset and Lease liability i 3.01 -
(b} Remeasuretnent of defined benefit plan il 0.43 -
Net adjustments 3.44 -
Total equity (shareholder's funds) as per Ind AS 389.23 191.51

Reconciliation of cash flows for the year ended 31st March, 2022
The transition from erstwhile Indian GAAP to Ind AS has not made a material impact on the statement of cash flows.
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d) Reconciliation of Balance Sheet as at April 1, 2021 between Indian GAAP and Ind AS:

. Amount as per Effects of transition to | Amount as per
rarioules Notes | GAAP (Reclassified Ind AS Ind AS
1 ASSETS
I Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 4.37 - 437
Right-of-use assets i - 20,50 20,50
Financial assets
(1) Other financial assets ii 338 (0.61) 277
Deferred tax assets (net) 10.52 - 10.52
Total non-current assets 18.27 19.88 38.16
2 Current assets
Financial assets
{1} Investments - g s
(ii) Trade receivables 131,72 . 131.72
(1ii) Cash and cash equivalents 308.56 - 308.56
(iv) Other bank balance 52,83 ™ 52,83
{v} Other financial assets 45,10 - 45.10
Other current assets 392 - 392
Total current assets 542.13 - 342,13
Total assets 560.41 19.88 580.29
I EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
I EQUITY
Equity Share Capital 0.18 - 0.18
Other equity 191.33 - 191.33
Total equity 191.51 - 191.51
LIABILITES
2 Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(i) Lease Liabilities i - 13.65 13.65
Provisions 3.99 - 399
Total non-current liabilities 3.99 13.65 17.64
3 Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings - H -
(i1) Lease Liabilities i - 6.24 6.24
(iii} Trade payables
a) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises; = 5 <
b) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small 169.39 - 169,39
enterprises
(iv) Others Financial Liabilities 136.44 136.44
Other current liabilities 47.27 - 47.27
Provisions 1.74 - L74
Current tax liabilities (net) 10.06 = 10,06
Total current liabilities 364,90 6.24 37113
Total liabilities 368.89 19.88 388.78
Total equity and liabilities 560.41 19.88 580,29
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€) Reconciliation of Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022 between Indian GAAP and Ind AS:

i Amount as per Effects of transition to | Amount as per
Particulars Notes | IGAAP (Rectassified) Ind AS Ind AS
I ASSETS
| Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 28.04 - 28.04
Right-of-use assets i - 3352 3351
Financial assets
(1) Other financial assets ii 6,98 -n.99 597
Deferred tax assets (net) - = -
Total non-current assets 35.02 32.53 67.52
2 Current assets
Financial assets
(i) Investments iv 250.00 441 254.41
(i) Trade receivables 295,58 - 295,58
(iii} Cash and cash equivalents 195.94 - 195.94
{iv) Other bank balance 54.78 - 54.78
{v} Other financial assets 144.23 - 144.23
Current tax assets (net) 28.70 - 28.70
Other current assets 79.24 - 79.24
Tatal current assets 1,048.47 4.41 1,052.88
Total assets 1,083.50 36.93 1,120.40
II  EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1 EQUITY
Share capital 0.23 - 0.23
Other equity 385.58 344 389.01
Total equity 385,81 3.44 389.23
LIABILITES
2 Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Lease Liabilities i - 19.54 19.54
Provisions 8.80 - 8.80
Total non-current liabilities 8.80 19.54 28.34
3 Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Lease Liabilities i - 13.92 13.92
Trade payables
A) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises; 12,32 - 12.32
B) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small
enterprises 357.11 - 357.11
Others Financial Liabilities 24315 - 243.15
Other current liabilities 70.32 - 70,32
Provisions 6.00 - 6.00
Total current liabilities 688,90 13.92 702,82
Total liabilities 697.70 33.47 731,16
Total equity and liabilities 1,083.49 36,90 1,120,39
\
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fi  Reconciliation of Statement of Profit or Loss for the year ended March 31, 2022

. Amount as per Effects of transition to | Amount as per
Prtiiine MOt | IGAAP (Reclassified Ind AS Ind AS
Revenue from operations + 2,042 06 - 2,042.06
Other income B 11.24 4.68 15.92
Total income 2,053.30 4.68 2,057.98
Expenses
Employee benefits expense iii 476.32 0.43 476.75
Finance cost i - 243 2,43
Depreciation and amortisation expense i 13.07 10.17 23.24
Other expenses i 2,079.20 -11.36 2,067.85
Total expenses 2,568.58 1.67 2,570,27
Profit before tax (515.28), 3.01 (512.29)
Tax expense:
Current tax - - -
Adjustment of tax relating to earlier periods - - "
Deferred tax 10.52 - 10.52
Total tax expense 10,52 - 10.52
Profit for the vear (525.80) 3.01 (522.81)
Other comprehensive income
Itemns that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
-R of the defined benefit plan - 043 0.43
Total other comprehensive income - 0.43 0.43
Total comprehensive income for the year (525.80) 344 (522.38
Notes to the reconciliation:
(i) Transition to Ind AS 116 "Leases”
The Company has applied Ind AS 116 using the modified retrospective approach wherein as on the T date the ROU Asset is equal to Lease liability. The right-of-use asset

is subsequently depreciated from the commencement date to the earlier of the end of 1]
of right-of-use assets are detenmined on the same basis as those of

any, and adjusted for certain

or, if that rate cannot be readily d ined, the Company's

(ii) Valuation of Security Deposits

As per Ind AS 109, all financial assets and liabilities are required to be measured at their respecti:
are thus required to be measured at present value using an appropriate discount
transaction price has been recognised as prepaid rent and is amortised over the

case where the same has heen d on lease arrang;

(i) R on defined benefit liability

Both under Previous GAAP and Ind AS the Company recognised costs related to post-employ:
gains and losses were recognised in the Statement of profit or loss, however under Ind AS all actuarial gains and losses are r

(iv) Remeasurements of short term investments

property, plant and equipment. In addition, the right-of-
of the lease liability.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement dat
i I borrowing rate. Generally,

'ment defined benefit plan on an actuarial basis, Under Previo

ie useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term. The estimated useful lives
use asset is periodically reduced by impairment losses, if

e, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease
the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate.

ve fair value. The interest free refundable security deposits are financial assets and
rate at the time of entering into lease agreement. The difference between the fair value and the
period of the lease on straight-line basis. The prepaid rent has been added to Right of use asset in

ly, these security deposits have been measured at amortised cost and the resultant interest is accounted as

us GAAP, actuarial

(-

1 in other comprehensive

Under previous GAAP, short-term investments were carried at cost, Under Ind AS, short-term investments are carried at fair value through profit and loss.
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42

i)

iii}
iv)

¥)

The Code on Sacial Security, 2020 (*Code’) relating to employee benefits during employment and post-employment benefits received Presidential assent in S p
2020, The Code has been published in the Gazette of India. However, the date on which the Code will come into effect has not been notified and the final rules /
interpretation have not yet been issued. The company will assess the impact of the Code when it comes into effect and will record any related impact i the period the
Code becomes effective.

Corporate social responsibility

Pursuant to the requirement of section 135 of Companies Act, 2013 and rules theron and further guidance note issued by ICAI during the year on Accounting for
expenditure on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) activities, the gross amount required to be spent by the Company towards CSR expenditure was amounting to NIL
{March 31, 2022: 0,75 million),

Ratio Analysis and its elements
Ratio analysis and its clements Numerator Denominator Asac ot % Change Reuson of Yariance
? March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
During the year company sold entire nnstual funds
Hrer) amounting to 254 41 M and duirng the vear compay
() Corrent ratio Current asscs Current Hiabilities o5 L B fas tiken toan from holding company amounting to
4586 4Thn
Total Debt Duirng the corrent year company lus taken loan from
o o b mdand derd, . holding company anionniing to 486, 47Mn. During the
(b} Debi-equity ratio E—m'[ ngs+ Lease 's Equity (0L %2) TN =1 056%, previous year ended March 31. 2022 the Company does
el nod fawe any borrowings cxcept lcase lisbilitics.
(LossyEamings for deby § r _
service = Net (lossiprofil | Dbt service = Intercst & :ﬂ::ﬁ:::cﬁ'::::ﬂ':’ni‘ ll ::;[c :ETT::
(e} Debl service coverage ratio [after taxes + Mon-cash Lease Payments + Principal {21.54) [EERK]] SiF3e) pwfcﬂ'.lmud expenses. Informaiton Technology and
operIling cxponses + Repayments L
Tinance cost A
(d}  Taventory turmover ratio Cost of goods sold Average lventory Mot applicabl Mot applicat Mol appli Mot applicabl
®)  Trade receivables tomover |Nel eredii sales = Gross : 2 %
it i St s retiom Average Trade Receivable 83 %56 4%,
et credil porcliases =
f‘?lin Trade payables tumorcr Gross erodil purchases - Average Trade Payables .82 735 1%,
purchase returmn
During the year company sold eatice mutual funds
1 . Met sales = Toll sabes - Working capital = Current ameuning (o 23441 Mn and duirg ihe year company
{81 Net capital tamaver ratio sales relurm assels — Current liabilities 8T o 1833 T tken foan from holding COMPANy smpunting le
4804 7Mn
thy  Retum en cquity ratio Net {LossiProfiis afler laves g;uir\zs' RINEHRIEE 4,27 (hB0y 615%)
: = During the year company's lasses have increased
) Net profit ratic Net (Loss\Profit :’:‘ ’“':‘m““a' Hleg- 03 076 4% majorly due 1o increase in payroll cost, legal and
s retu . expenses, Informatten Technology and
Capital Employed = ;cn'a CHPENSCE
(LossVEarmings before Tangible Net Wortl + Total o
) Rewrn on capiial employed icront Avdliakie Dbt + Defirred Tax R {1.26) BE1%|
Liahility
Interest Incame on deposits .
%) Boluenonanvesmans with banks + Income from Bank Deposits+ Mumal nol B T3 Solfi sunustual fund investment and realised interest
Funds during the year
mutual funds
Other Statutory Information )
The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami property.
The Company do not have any transactions with companies struck off other than as disclosed in table below:
Relativnship
5 Balance outstanding Balunce outstanding :
Name of k off m;
ame af struck off Compuariy Aol nMIGas L Mo iR 31,2027 Vith struck off
campany, if any
Cosmus bags private limited, Bipfalcon web scrvices private
limited Health gadgets private limited. Getcured apathecary
private limited Diviam kirpa international
privatclimiled, Ressdy2walk india private linited, Ganga fishions
privale limited. Alzellife care private limited. Plp production &
marketing (ope) privaie limited, Golden bricks private
limited Ipsel entertainment privaie limited Opexworks solutions
private limited Spacecom worldwide privane Timted, Ganga
Fashions private limited, Green handle products privaie
limited. Vital care private limited. Axemi handiooms {ope}
private limited Bookmyoulfit online private limited. Public
clething private limited, Tannu info services private limited Hey Advance [rom w7 {24} Mong

marting retail private limited, Twenty four spoke private customer/Trade receivables

limited. Saartha living privale limited Kat thread private

limited. Bestrong ventures private ed Kledings fashion

private limited. Pl clothing private Timnited, Plexasplus sone

private limited Skylark expross (delhi) privale limited Maiangi

polymers and products private ted, Swinging sales graphic

studio fepe) private limited Technistar india privale

limited, Fashion coliage private LViro b private

limited. Heed publications privaic |i ted Spg, india privie

ited.Indigene emarket privie limited, Globalsof technologics
e fimited, Akar Ihmited

The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.

The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual C wirency during the respective financial years / period

The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) ar entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that
the Intermediary shall:

{a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficraries
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vi) The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing

or otherwise) that the Company shall;

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Bencficiaries.

vii) The Company does not have any transaction which is not recorded in

the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax

assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, scarch or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961 ¥

viii) The Company has maintained proper books of account as required by law except for the August22 MCA notification first year for which the company is implementing
wherein it does not have servers physically located in India for the daily backup in relation to its accounting software. However, the company have backups of its
invoicing software on servers maintained in India, Further, subsequent to the year-end, the Company has also started taking daily back-up of its accounting software in a

server physically located in India

ix) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial Institution or other lender.

X

—

”‘
=

Rules, 2017

The Company does not have any Scheme of Arrangements which have been approved by the Competent Authority in terms of sections 230 to 237 of the Act,

The Company has complied with the the number of layers prescribed under of Section 2{87) of the Act read with the Companies (Restriction on number of Layers)

45 Post the year end, the board of directors of the company, in the meeting held on 31st August, 2023 has approved a composite scheme of arrangements under section 230
to 232 and other applicable provision of the Companies Act 2013 between Pickrr Technologies Private Limited ("Transferor C ompany") and Bigfoot Retail Solutions

Private Limited ("Transferee Cc "}. The sch

inter-alia provides for, The Share entitlement ratio for the proposed demerger is 48,267 (Forty-Eight Thousand

Two Hundred and Sixty-Seven) Non-Convertible Non-Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares {"NCRPS") of Shiprocket having face value of INR 100 each fully
paid up shall be issued for every 10 (Ten) equity shares held in Pickir having face value of INR 10 each fully paid up.

The Appointed Date for the Scheme is April 1, 2023 or such other date as may be determined by the Board of Directors of Shiprocket and Pickr or such other date as
may be fixed or approved by the National Company Law Tribunal or such other competent authority. The scheme is subject to receipt of regulatory and other approvals
inter-alia approvals from NCLT, Shareholders, creditors and others, as may be applicable.

d wherever

46 Previous year's figures have been regrouped / recl

¥ to confirm to current year's classification.
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